

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2018                                                                                       EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA REVISED 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 1 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:00 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing-#1 Format: Parent/Guardian/Advocate will have 5 minutes to 
present the case for the appeal.  District will have 5 minutes 
to present the case for denial of appeal.  The Trustees will 
ask clarifying questions.  Trustees will vote in Open Session 
immediately following the Pledge of Allegiance. 


2.2. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.4. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


2.5. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code Section 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the SCCCE for 2018-19. 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Vote on Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing Trustees will vote on Hearing #1 


3.3. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


1/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2018                                                                                       EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA REVISED 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 2 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's/Students’ Reports  


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Students’ Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes September 26, 2018 Reviewed  


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items: 
These matters may be passed by one roll 
call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Resolution 12-18-19: Santa Cruz HS Bytheal 
Ratliff Humanitarian Scholarship 


 


   


2/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2018                                                                                       EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA REVISED 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 3 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


There are no General Contracts or Agreements 


   


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids & 
Change Orders 


 


8.3.1. Change Order #3: CRW Industries – 
Concrete Repair for Natural Bridges Gym 
Modernization Phase I Project 


 


8.3.2. Change Order #2: CRW Industries – 
Groundwater Intrusion & Mitigation for 
Branciforte Small Schools Relocation of 
Playground and Lunch Shelter 


 


8.3.3. Contract: Enviroplex: Natural Bridges 
Modernization 


 


8.3.4. Change Order #1: Fresh Start Painting – 
Natural Bridges Gym Modernization & 
Repairs 


 


   


8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


   


8.5.1. Educational Services There are no items to be transacted and/or discussed 
for the Educational Services Department 


   


8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Food Services Update Staff will present an update on District Food Services 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update Bartos Architects will provide an update on bond projects 
budgets 


8.5.2.3. Staff Report: Parcel Tax Update Staff will present an update on District parcel taxes  


8.5.2.4. New Business: Business Services: Contract: 
SCCC/COE for new Financial System 
ESCAPE 


Staff will provide information on the new County Financial 
System 


3/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2018                                                                                       EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA REVISED 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 4 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


8.5.3. Human Resources There are no items to be transacted and/or discussed 
for the Human Resources Department 


   


8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.5.4.1. New Business: Board Policies Updates: Final 
Reading 


Recommendation: Approve updates/new policies for final 
reading and adoption. 


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 13-18-19 in 
Support of the Soquel Union Elementary 
District Parcel Tax Measure B in the 
November 6, 2018 Election 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 13-18-19 


8.5.4.3. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting 
Agendas 


At the May 23, 2018 Governance Session, the Board of 
Education agreed that each board meeting agenda would 
include an opportunity for discussion of future agenda items. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 


4/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                   
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                                      TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2018                                                                                       EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL STREET, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 
AGENDA REVISED 


 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting August 29, 2018 - Page 5 of 5 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 


5/202







Minutes September 26, 2018 Reviewed


Separator Page


17/202







 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING  


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


September 26, 2018 REVISED 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:33 p.m. in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii   
Jeremy Shonick Patty Threet   Claudia Vestal 
 
Absent: Deb Tracy-Proulx 
 
Absent: Student Representative Selvartham, Soquel High School 
Absent: Student Representative Rodriguez, Costanoa High School 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education. 
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None 
   


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
Superintendent’s Report 
Since the Board Meeting on September 12, Superintendent Munro has met with the Multi-Tiered Systems of 
Success (MTSS) core team to define progress-monitoring metrics and the elementary and middle school 


18/202







 


 


English language arts/development curriculum pilot program committee.  The Cabinet hosted meetings with 
GSCFT and SCCCE Leaders.  The Superintendent attended the Bond Oversight Committee meeting on 
September 25.  Superintendent Munro continues to build community partners through events such as the 
Santa Cruz City Schools & Santa Cruz Education Foundation plans for a SC Warriors game night on November 
30 with a portion of the ticket sales benefitting SCCS libraries.  The Superintendent met with SCPD Chief Mills 
and Deputy Chief Martinez and a school tour for SC Mayor Terrazas and “Sister City” Sestri Levante 
Councilman Luca; a Santa Cruz Rotary visit to the Harbor High Career Technical Education classes; the Harbor 
High 50th Anniversary/Open House celebration. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Shonick acknowledged the passing of Santa Cruz High School Head Custodian Melvin Martinez 
and noted that he is missed. 
 
Dr. Ranii reported that she has visited Pacific Elementary and Bonny Doon, and has plans to visit Happy Valley 
and Mountain Elementary schools.  Dr. Ranii applauds the collaboration and articulation between Santa Cruz 
City Schools and these feeder districts on behalf of students. 
 
Board Member Threet attended the Harbor High School 50th Anniversary/Open House celebration and was 
very impressed by the event and the excitement of the students.  Trustee Threet attended the Soquel High 
School football game at Scotts Valley High School and saw many familiar faces. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Vestal attended the Harbor High School 50th Anniversary/Open House and impressed by the 
number of alumni who came from a great distance to attend the event and by the number of original faculty 
members in attendance.  Board President Vestal had a wonderful time at the Delta Charter School Open 
House.  Ms. Vestal’s student guide shared that she is excited to take a college-level math class.   


 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


1. MSP (Ranii/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Meeting on September 
12, 2018. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
Mr. Shonick and Dr. Coonerty had questions on several of the Consent Agenda items.  Ms. Coito, Mr. Gaffney, 
Superintendent Munro and Facilities Director Miller provided the required information.  Dr. Ranii moved 
approval of the Consent Agenda, consisting of, Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – Certificated; Item 8.1.2. 
Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 
8.1.5. Budget Transfers; Item 8.1.6. Gift; Item 8.1.7. Disposition of Surplus Property; Item 8.1.8. Community 
Advisory Committee Member Approval-Julie Lattin; Item 8.1.9. Resolution 11-18-19 GANN Limits Revised; Item 
8.1.10. Out of State Travel-Special Education; Item 8.1.11. 4th Quarter Investment Report; Item 8.1.12. Revised 
Classified Job Description-Campus Supervisor; Item 8.2.1. Education Services/Curriculum: MAP/CPA 
Assessment Purchase Contract; Item 8.2.2. Education Services/Special Education: Out of State Non-Public 
School-Alpine Academy; Item 8.2.3. Education Services/Special Education: Out of State Non-Public School-
Logan River Academy; Item 8.2.4. Business Services: MOU between SCCS/Cabrillo College/SCCAL; Item 8.2.5. 
Business Services: CSA-Jerene Lacey; Item 8.2.6. Business Services/Facilities: Proposal & Contract: MBS 
Engineering-Natural Bridges Head Start – gas leak repair; Item 8.2.7. Business Services: Kleinfelder Proposal for 


19/202







 


 


DSA Closeout; Item 8.3.1. Change Order #2: Andy’s Roofing-Branciforte MS roofing project; Item 8.3.2. Change 
Order #1: Andy’s Roofing-Mission Hill MS & Gault ES re-roofing projects; Item 8.3.3. Change Order #2: Andy’s 
Roofing-Mission Hill MS & Gault ES re-roofing projects; Item 8.3.4. Contract Amendment: Belli Architecture-
Harbor HS MPR/Music modernization; Item 8.3.5. Change Order #1: CRW Industries: Branciforte SS Lunch 
Shelter & Playground Structure; Item 8.3.6. Change Order #2: CRW Industries: Natural Bridges Gym 
modernization; Item 8.3.7. Career Technical Education Grant Submission-Authorization to Proceed; Item 8.3.8. 
Quote: Mobiflex-Security Grills for Harbor HS locker improvement project; Item 8.3.9. Change Order #1: OC 
McDonald-Santa Cruz HS piping replacement new boiler room; Item 8.3.10. Proposal & Contract: PSR Electric-
Natural Bridges modernization.  Dr. Coonerty seconded the motion.  The motion was approved by the 
following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes   


Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes   Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
8.4.1.  Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education did not take action on Certificated/Classified/Management 
Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


2. Mr. Gaffney did not have any information to report to the Board of Education regarding 
Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 


3. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Mr. Gaffney 
regarding negotiations with the GSCFT for 2018-19. 


4. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Mr. Gaffney 
regarding negotiations with the SCCCE for 2018-19. 


5. The Board of Education heard an update from and provided direction to Mr. Gaffney 
regarding property negotiations at 133 Mission Street, Santa Cruz, CA.  


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Summer Professional Development (PD) 
Curriculum Co-Directors Robb and Hodges shared that many SCCS teachers use their summer 
break for professional learning.  Although these trainings are offered by different providers, in 
different content areas and with varying outcomes, all professional development opportunities 
are tied to our four district strategic areas of focus, which are, academic literacy, mathematics, 
English learner progress and school connectedness.  Approximately 100 teachers participated in 
summer professional development and about 120 staff members were part of the Santa Cruz 
Instructional Leadership (SCIL) training days.  Opportunities included Integrated English 
Language Development (ELD) for all site and district administrators, Silicon Valley Math 
Initiative training for all grade levels, multiple Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) 
trainings, College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM) for high school teachers, Advancement Via 
Individual Determination (AVID) summer institute, multiple trainings for Counselors, Santa Cruz 
Instructional Leaders (SCIL) professional development and Collective Teacher Efficacy training 
(influencing student outcomes through collective action).  This report was informational in 
nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 


8.5.1.2. Staff Report: California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) Test 
Results and CAASPP Sample Problems 
The California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress’ Smarter Balanced Assessment 
is given to students in grades 3 through 8 and grade 11 to gauge performance in mathematics 


20/202







 


 


and English language literacy, including the ability to write clearly, think clearly and solve 
problems.  CAASPP scores are part of the California student assessment system and scores are 
posted on the California Dashboard annually to determine both current ability and growth over 
time.  Student performance data from 2015 through 2017 was provided, as well as preliminary 
data for 2018; however, the 2018 data is not final and there is no comparison data available at 
this time.  Leadership and Staff will study our results to set program and plan goals based on 
areas of growth, and to celebrate areas of strength and build upon them.  This report was 
informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this 
matter. 
 


 8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Long Term Debt 
Mr. Gaffney reported that the total long term debt of the District is $187,454,401.  The 2018-19 
annual payment is 15,476,682.  Of the total long term debt, $1,944,576 is funded by RDA funds. 
The remainder, $185,509,825, is funded by property taxes.  General Obligation Bonds, a 
Qualified School Construction Bond and Certificates of Participation compose the long term 
liabilities.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of 
Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.5.2.2. New Business: SecurAll: Hardware for District Card Access Security System 


Mr. Gaffney reported that this project is a district wide safety program to replace all door 
hardware with a card access system that will allow for lock downs on site and remotely. This 
quote is for the material only for all doors district wide. Multiple vendors were reviewed and 
the SecureAll product was determined to be the most state of the art and the most cost 
effective by District and Architectural teams. Purchases have been made through a piggyback 
contract with Marin Community College District.  MSP () 6-0, the Board of Education approved 
the SecurAll hardware purchase for the District card access security system. 


 
8.5.4.1. New Business: Resolution 08-18-19 in Support of County of SC Measure G 


The Resolution Committee acknowledges that the Measure G one-half percent sales tax will 
provide funding for essential County services such as sheriff, fire, emergency response, local 
street maintenance and pothole repair, integrated mental health, substance use disorder and 
health care services, homelessness programs, parks, youth and senior programs, economic 
development and job creation, affording housing and other essential County services.  These 
essential services are important in supporting District students and families.  Ms. Threet moved 
approval and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.  The following roll call vote approved 
the motion: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes   


Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes   Vestal – Yes 
 
8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 09-18-19 in Support of County of SC Measure H 


The Resolution Committee acknowledges that, if adopted by the voters, Measure H would 
provide $119 million to the local jurisdictions of Santa Cruz County to create affordable housing 
opportunities for local residents and workers. In addition, Measure H will also provide $21 
million for the creation of facilities to address homelessness countywide.  If passed, this 
measure would provide resources to support the development of workforce housing for Santa 
Cruz City Schools employees.  Dr. Coonerty moved approval and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded 
the motion.   The following roll call vote approved the motion: 


21/202







 


 


 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes   


Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes   Vestal – Yes 
 


8.5.4.3. New Business: Resolution 10-18-19 in Support of LGBQT+ Month 
The Resolution Committee acknowledges that the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education 
supports the rights, freedoms and equality of those who are lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender 
and queer (LGBTQ+).  The Board also believes that all students deserve to feel safe and 
welcome in their schools and to see themselves represented in the curricula.  The Board has 
adopted the new Social Studies framework, which includes the Fair, Accurate, Inclusive and 
Respectful (FAIR) Education Act.  The FAIR Act mandates the inclusion of the political, 
economic, and social contributions of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and queer people in 
the social studies and history curricula in California public schools.  In honor of the 
contributions of LGBTQ+ leaders, many districts are designating the Month of October as 
LGBTQ+ History Month.   Dr. Coonerty moved approval and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the 
motion.   The following roll call vote approved the motion: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes   


Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes   Vestal – Yes 
 


8.5.4.4. New Business: Board Policy Updates – First and/or Final Reading 
Superintendent Munro reported that new/revised/updated policies are submitted through the 
GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which uses CSBA recommendations for 
review and change approximately six times per year in participating districts.  These 
recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  Staff has 
reviewed the policies and ensured that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools 
has been included.   MSP (Threet/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the board 
policy updates for first reading. 


 
8.5.4.5. Discussion: Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas 


Board Members would like to have a report at a future meeting that provides a plan to work 
towards collective teacher efficacy.  Superintendent Munro suggested that as a part of the 
October Trustee meetings, Board Members can provide feedback regarding what specific 
information Trustees would like included in the proposed plan.  This information will be shared 
in the November Trustee meetings. 


 
9.  Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President 
Vestal adjourned this Regular Meeting at 8:53 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on October 3, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on October 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on November 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


22/202







 


 


4. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on December 12, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on January 16, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 23, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 6, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 20, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 17, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on May 15, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 12, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


 


 


 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


23/202







Personnel Actions - Certificated


Separator Page


24/202







 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


  


  


  


AGENDA ITEM:                    Certificated Personnel Actions 


  


DATE:                                   October 3, 2018 


  


FROM:                                  Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:                          Kris Munro, Superintendent 


  


  


  


  


Recommendation: 


Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


  


Background: 


The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, 


California Education Code and the negotiated contract.  


 


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 


and career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


  


 


  


 


25/202







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.1 


2018-2019 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Johanna Atkinson, Mixed Media Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not 


to exceed 50 hours 


 


Nick Bacon, Saturday School, Santa Cruz High, 9/22/18 - 5/25/19, not to exceed 56 hours 


 


Janna Bedell, After School Learning Center, Harbor High, 8/17/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 42 hours 


 


Lauren Hulphers, After School Learning Center, Harbor High, 8/17/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 42 


hours 


 


Amanda Jarosz, Gardening Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to 


exceed 50 hours 


 


Peter Johnson, Robotics Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to exceed 


50 hours 


 


Tawn Kennedy, Bike Club Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to 


exceed 50 hours 


 


Michael Laird, Martial Arts Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/19/18 - 5/8/19, not to 


exceed 50 hours 


 


Laura Pendergraft, After School Learning Center, Harbor High, 8/17/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 20 


hours 


 


Kathleen Peppard, Clay Enrichment Provider, Alternative Family Education, 9/19/18 - 4/24/19, not 


to exceed 112 hours 


 


Matthew Schilz, After School Student Support, Soquel High, 8/22/18 - 6/6/19, not to exceed 80 


hours 


 


Matthew Schutz, After School Learning Center, Harbor High, 8/17/18 - 6/7/19, not to exceed 35 


hours 


 


Anne Spoon, Home & Hospital Teacher, Special Education, 8/22/18 - 6/6/19, not to exceed 100 


hours 


26/202







Personnel Actions - Classified


Separator Page


27/202







 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:      October 3, 2018    


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


  


Recommendation: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


    


Background: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


 


This work is done in support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


  


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


  


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


  


  


 


  


  


28/202







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 


  


Reviewed by Classified Personnel Director: Keneé Houser 9/26/2018 


 


 •Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 


Ballou, Angela, Ballou, Occupational Therapist - SE, 32hrs/10mos, effective 10/1/18 


Bate, Darcy,  Paraeducator - Afterschool Programs - MH, 10hrs/9mos, effective 9/24/18 


Re-Hired:  


None 


Promotion: 


None 


Reclassification: 


Trinchero, Suzanne, Senior Accountant 40hrs/12mos to Classified Management - Supervisor-


Finance - BS, 223days/12mos 


Demotion:  


None 


Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 


McCombie-Murray, Behavior Technician PBIS - BMS, from 26hs/9mos to 32.5hrs/9mos, 


effective 8/21/18 


Additional FTE/Position:  


Murray, Cindy, Textbook Media Assistant - SC, 7.5hrs/9mos, effective 9/17/18 


Rodriguez, Leslie, Textbook Media Assistant - SC, 10hrs/9mos, effective 9/24/18  


39-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  


None 


63-Mo Reinstatement: 


None 


Transfer:  


None   


Transfer W/Increase FTE: 


None 


29/202







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  


None 


Leave of Absence:  


None 


Separation from Service: 


Wilson, Aaliyah, Paraeducator - BSS, 18.50hrs/9mos, resigned, eff 8/1/18 


Retirement: 


None 


 


•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 


New Temporary Employees/EWA: 


None 


Existing Temporary Employees/EWA: 


Baxley, Leda, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 300hrs, 8/4/18 to 6/7/19 


Davis, Paige, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 435 hrs, 8/15/18 to 6/7/19 


Didion, Gabriela, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 260hrs, 8/18/18 to 6/7/19 


Lu, Yucheng, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 300hrs, 8/4/18 to 6/7/19 


Stuart, Emily, Paraeducator - HH, not to exceed 140hs, 9/4/18 to 6/7/19 


Existing Regular Employees/EWA: 


Alexander, Mikaela, Behavior Technician SPED - SE, not to exceed 27hrs, 8/7/18 to 8/14/18 


Franks, Dorothy, Site Program Coordinator - WL, not to exceed 145hrs, 8/23/18 to 6/6/19 


Gonzales, Elisa, Parent/Community Support Coordinator - BV, not to exceed 35hrs, 7/20/18 to 


6/6/19 


Lambert, Beatriz, Payroll Technician - FI, not to exceed 9hrs, 5/8/18 to 6/14/18 


Nijor, Amrik, Attendance Technician - MH, not to exceed 250hrs, 8/22/18 to 4/30/19  


Rodriguez, Joleen, Behavior Technician SPED, not to exceed 85hrs, 8/27/18 to 12/19/18 


Saarni, Richard IV, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 9/01/18 to 6/30/19  


Shaheen, Patricia, Food Service Worker - FS/SS, not to exceed 75hrs, 7/1/18 to 8/30/18 


Sihler, Kris, Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 72hrs, 8/16/18 to 8/28/18 


Sihler, Kris, Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 25hrs, 8/20/18 to 8/28/18 


Sihler, Kris, Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 25hrs, 8/29/18  to 9/14/18 


Tolamatl, Hector, Night Custodian - BM, not to exceed 20hrs, 8/1/18 to 6/30/19 


 


30/202







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


 


 


Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 


None 


Out of Class: 


Sihler, Kris, Trainer/Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 72hrs, 8/29/18 to 9/10/18 


 


•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 


Stipend: 


None  


Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 


Carmichael, Catherine, Child Care/Yard Duty - WL, not to exceed 28hrs, 9/4/18 to 6/8/19 


Martinez, Perla, Playground Recess Coach - GA, not to exceed 17hrs, 8/17/18 to 8/20/18 


Mullins, Marsha, Childcare - DL, not to exceed 25hrs, 9/11/18 to 5/14/19 


Mullins, Marsha, Yard Duty - DL, not to exceed 483hrs, 8/22/18 to 6/6/19 


Powell Aguilar, Mayra, Yard Duty Monitor - DL, not to exceed 189hrs, 9/6/18 to 5/17/19 


Shulman, Brian, Yard Duty Monitor - WL, not to exceed 75hrs, 9/7/18 to 6/8/19 


 


•Eligibility Lists Established• 


Paraeducator - Special Education 


Paraeducator / Paraeducator - Academic Intervention  


Attendance Technician / Health Office Assistant  


 


 


31/202







Purchase Orders, Bids & Quotes


Separator Page


32/202







1DODD_ATJEUB-983C1E23EE90480AB488E0DA0BA631D98 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $90,200 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $90,200 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


33/202







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


October 3, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-50C52D50BE0B43EAB2B58F65A9D48F38.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-01203 IT Dept. $66,000.00 AT&T Circuit charges for 18/19.  
Unrestricted. 


19-01166 DeLaveaga, Bay 
View 


$3,725.00 American Compliance 
Services 


Asbestos soil samplings for 
excavation – New Classroom 
Buildings.  Bond, Measure B. 


19-00650 Harbor High $15,347.89 Butano Geotechnical Change Order to bring the P.O. 
total to match the board 
approved contract amount.  
Bond, Measure A. 


19-01143 Westlake $5,874.99 Convergeone 22 Chromebooks and Mgmt. 
Licenses.  Donations. 


19-01139 Santa Cruz High $10,804.17 Dilbeck & Sons Confirming for Payment – Sheet 
Metal Repairs between 
Portables.  Building Fund. 


19-01140 DeLaveaga, 
Westlake, B40SS 


$14,140.24 Dilbeck & Sons Confirming for Payment – Misc. 
Maint. Construction work.  
Deferred Maint. 


19-01156 Soquel High $81,150.00 Division of State 
Architect 


Confirming for Payment – DSA 
Fee – Modernization Phase II, 
Wing 100/200.  Bond, Measure 
A. 


19-00265 Bay View $2,750.00 Landscape Structures Change Order 2 – PIP Playground 
Drain Reinstallation.  Other 
Restricted Local. 


19-01161 B40 Middle $2,585.30 Meridian Student 
Planners 


Confirming for Payment – 
Student Planners for 18/19.  
Donations. 


19-01198 Facilities $3,704.09 North Bay Ford Confirming for Payment – Body 
Work on Truck #59.  Insurance. 


19-00358 Mission Hill $2,500.00 Palace Change Order to purchase 
additional Instructional Supplies 
as needed.  Other Restricted 
Local – Student Payments. 


19-01138 Human Resources $15,000.00 Palace Open Order to purchase Safety 
Supplies.  Other Restricted Local 
– Workers Comp/Safety Grant. 


34/202







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


October 3, 2018 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 
 


 
M:\1DODD_ATJEUB-50C52D50BE0B43EAB2B58F65A9D48F38.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  


 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


19-01204 Soquel High $5,000.00 Palace Open Order to purchase Copy 
Paper.  Unrestricted. 


19-01183 Soquel High $3,720.00 Phil Allegri Electric Confirming for Payment – Repair 
of CAT 6 lines that were 
damaged during Pool 
Construction. 


19-01096 Santa Cruz High $3,217.00 Quilici Gardening Confirming for Payment – Pole 
Vault Runway Installation.  
Measure O. 


19-01167 Harbor High $3,746.43 Rockler Woodworking Table Saw and Accessories.  
Measure O. 


19-01171 Santa Cruz High $6,630.00 Santa Cruz Coast Athletic 
League 


Prepay – 18/19 League Dues.  
Measure O. 


19-01205 Soquel High $6,800.00 Santa Cruz Coast Athletic 
League 


Prepay – 18/19 League Dues.  
Measure O. 


19-01135 Soquel High $2,873.38 Soquel Nursery Prepay – Ag Supplies.  Ag 
Incentive. 


19-01154 Finance $220,432.00 US Bank 2018 Certificates of Participation 
QSCB.  Building Funds. 


19-00087 Transportation $18,000.00 Watsonville Diesel Parts 
& Service 


Change Order to cover Bus 
repairs.  Transportation – Special 
Ed. 


 


35/202







Warrant Register


Separator Page


36/202







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
1DODD_ATJEUB-5ACEAB0ED5904E72BC4DC2D6FF773AF5.doc 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
The report covers vendor warrants issued from 9/14/18 – 9/20/18. Hard copies of the report 
are available for public review at the Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


37/202







38/202







39/202







40/202







41/202







42/202







43/202







44/202







Resolution 12-18-19: Santa Cruz HS Bytheal Ratliff


Humanitarian Scholarship


Separator Page


45/202







AGENDA ITEM:  


1DODD_ATJEUB-421B3F62BB314D49ABABBDA3F4BA6D95 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Resolution # 12-18-19, Establishing the Bytheal Ratliff 


Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship at Santa Cruz High School 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution # 12-18-19, establishing the Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship at 
Santa Cruz High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Bytheal Demery Ratliff was born on Dec 12, 1967 in Columbia, Mississippi, the son of Joseph Ratliff and 
Zelma Alfred Fennell. He arrived in Santa Cruz on August 21, 1968  at 8 months old. He attended Natural 
Bridges Elementary, Mission Hill Junior High, Santa Cruz High School, Cabrillo Community College and the 
Culinary College of Foods in Salinas, CA. He worked at Berkeley Farms for many years and spent the last 
18 years of his life working in the Live Oak School District holding numerous positions. He was best 
known as campus supervisor and coach of several sporting teams at Shoreline Middle School. 
 
As a youth, Bytheal played many sports such as soccer, baseball, basketball and football. He was given 
the opportunity to play football at the collegiate level while attending Cabrillo College. As his 
athletic career came to an end, he developed a strong interest in coaching the youth in the Santa Cruz 
community.      He coached Junior Varsity football at Santa Cruz High,  AAU boys basketball, Little League 
baseball, Cabrillo GALS and Crushers softball teams. Bytheal left behind a legacy of giving, loving, sharing 
and caring for others that will long be remembered and cherished in the Santa Cruz community. 
 
Student athletes participating in football, basketball and baseball may apply for the memorial 
scholarship by filling out the Santa Cruz High School General Scholarship Application.  The Bytheal 
Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship Committee, composed of Zelma Fennell, Mark Hodges, Erik 
Redding and Keith Hodges, will annually select the eligible student(s) to receive the scholarship(s).  If any 
of these Committee Members are not available, Annissa Morris, Kurt Hodges and Kevin Hodges will 
serve as alternative Committee Members. All members have the option to vote in person or remote 
(via email or tel ephone). 
 
 
The criteria to be used to determine the scholarship recipient will be the following: 
 


 The student must be a Santa Cruz High senior who has maintained academic eligibility for the 


46/202







AGENDA ITEM:  


1DODD_ATJEUB-421B3F62BB314D49ABABBDA3F4BA6D95 


entire football, basketball or baseball season, and has demonstrated outstanding 
sportsmanship, excellent on-field performance, selfless team play and exemplary leadership on 
and off the field.  


 The student must be committed to continuing education at a two or four year institution or 
post- secondary career or technical training program. 


 To receive the funds, the scholarship recipient(s) must provide the Santa Cruz High 
Scholarship Coordinator by May 30th of each active year, proof of enrollment in college with 
a course load of at least 12 units, or of enrollment in a career/technical program, a 
completed W-9 form, and a copy of the thank you letter written to Zelma Fennell and Anissa 
Morris. 
 


The family has requested that scholarships be awarded in the amount of $300 per sport in the first 
year, and $200 per sport in the second year.  Donations will continue to be collected. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post- 
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


 


47/202







A Resolution of the Governing Board 


Of Santa Cruz City Schools 


Resolution # 12-18-19 


Establishing the Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship is established by Zelma Fennell and 
extended family, in memory of Bytheal Ratliff, a 1986 graduate of Santa Cruz High School; and 


 
 
WHEREAS, a scholarship will be awarded annually from the account to a student or students 
graduating from Santa Cruz High School; and 


 
 
WHEREAS, the recipient will be a student who has maintained academic eligibility for the entire football, 
basketball or baseball season, and has demonstrated outstanding sportsmanship, excellent on-field 
performance, selfless team play and exemplary leadership on and off the field; and 


 
 
WHEREAS, the recipient is planning to enter a two or four year institution or post- secondary career or 
technical training program; and 


 
 
WHEREAS, students may apply by filling out the Santa Cruz High School General Scholarship Application; and 


 
 
WHEREAS, a Selection Committee composed of Zelma Fennell,  Mark Hodges, Erik Redding and Keith Hodges 
will make the decision as to whom the recipient(s) will be, with Annissa Morris, Kurt Hodges and Kevin 
Hodges as alternates should any of the Selection Committee not be available; 


 
 
WHEREAS, in order to receive the funds, the scholarship recipient(s) must provide the Santa Cruz High 
Scholarship Coordinator by May 30th of each active year, proof of enrollment in college with a course load 
of at least 12 units, or of enrollment in a career/technical program, a completed W-9 form, and a copy of the 
thank you letter written to Zelma Fennell and Anissa Morris. 


 
 
NOW,THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the District’s accounting department be directed to deposit all 
donations in a separate interest-bearing fund to be named the “Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial 
Scholarship Fund.” 


 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, on this third day of October, 2018, by the Governing Board of the Santa Cruz City 
Schools by the following roll call vote: 


 
 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: 
 
       _____________________________________________ 
       President of the Governing Board 
Attested to: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Secretary of the Governing Board of Santa Cruz City Schools 


48/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Change Order #3 for CRW Industries, Inc. for Concrete Repair for 
the Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Phase 1 Project  


      
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #3 for CRW Industries, Inc. for concrete repair for the Natural Bridges 
gym modernization phase 1 project.  
 
Background: 
This change order includes demo of a 12’x12’ cement pad and the form & pouring of a new 
24’x5’ sidewalk to patch existing concrete conditions for safety purposes.  At the time of the 
original bid, the concrete was cracked, but the contractor believed they could salvage it and 
keep it in place.   Through the course of construction, they determined that this was not 
possible. The previously approved contract amount was $437,397.98, and the new contract, 
including this change order, will be $443,609.78. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #3  $6,211.80 (1.42% increase of the contract amount) Measure B Funds 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


49/202







 


 


 


 


PCO REVIEW FORM 
 


DSA Number  


Project Description  


Client  


PCO #  


Issued by  Date  


Reviewed by  Date  


Comments:  
  


T: 800.725.0571   |   F: 800.725.0571   www.madi-arch.com 


 


30  S. Potrero St. Suite  | Santa Cruz, 95060
40 S. First St. Suite A | San Jose CA, 95113
3 5


N/A


Natural Bridges Minor Repairs


Santa Cruz City Schools


#7 - Form and Pour 24'x5' sidewalk and demo 12x12 pad


CRW Industries


MADI Group, Inc.


09/19/18


09/19/18


No exceptions taken. The amount of $6,211.80 is appropriate for the scope of work
required.


Reviewed by:
MADI Group, Inc.
Presley Obenshain


50/202







51/202







A & C Gradnr11g h-nc. 
190 Rainbow lane 
Watsonville, CA 95076 
(831) 763-2538
Fax (831) 763-2555


BILL TO: CRW Industries 


DESCRIPTION 


 


INVOICE 


# 2018-1830 


DATE: September 18, 2018 


TERMS: Upon Receipt 
PROJECT: Natural Bridges 
JOB NO.: EXTRA WORK 


AMOUNT 


 


Form and Pour 24'x 5' sidewalk and demo 12'x 12' pad 5,800.00 


Please remit to above address. 1.5%/mo. Late charge on 
balances 30 days or more past due. TOTAL: $ 5,800.00 


52/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Change Order #2 for CRW Industries, Inc. for Groundwater 
Intrusion and Mitigation for the Branciforte Small Schools 
Relocation of Playground and Lunch Shelter Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve change order #2 for CRW Industries, Inc. for groundwater intrusion and mitigation for 
the Branciforte Small Schools relocation of playground and lunch shelter project. 
 
Background: 
This change order includes additional charges for groundwater intrusion and mitigation for 
water infiltration that occurred during drilling for the shade structure footings. The previously 
approved contract amount was $259,425.89 and the new total contract, including this change 
order, will be $263,707.76. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #1   $4,281.87 (1.65% increase of the original contract amount)  Measure B Bond 
Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 
 


53/202







PCO Log New Lunch Shelter Playground


DSA Appl. 01-117561


Project: New Lunch Shelter & Playground


Owner: Santa Cruz City Schools


Contractor: CRW Industries


DSA No: 01-117561


MADI Proj. No: CSBF-01


$257,779.00


$0.00


$257,779.00


PCO No. Issue Date Description CCD # Originator


Proposed 


Amount Status


Approved 


Date


Accepted 


Amount


Rejected 


Amount Owner Unforseen


Design 


Issue


01 9/10/2018 Upcharge for toilet partitions Owner $1,614.60 Accept 9/11/2018 $1,614.60 $0.00 x


02 9/10/2018 Groundwater Intrusion and Mitigation Contractor $4,281.87 Accept 9/19/2018 $4,281.87 $0.00 x


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00 Percent of Total


$5,896.47 $0.00 2%


$263,675.47


$0.00


-$5,896.47


Total Allowance:


Allowance Remaining:


Base Contract Amount:


Allowances:


Total Contract Amount:


Total Change:


New Base Amount:


303 Potrero Street #5 | Santa Cruz, CA  95060


   40 S. First St. Suite A | San Jose, CA 95113


450 Chadbourne Road, Suite G, Fairfield, CA 94534


T: 800.725.0571 www.madi-arch.com
54/202







 


 


 


 


PCO REVIEW FORM 
 


DSA Number  


Project Description  


Client  


PCO #  


Issued by  Date  


Reviewed by  Date  


Comments:  
  


T: 800.725.0571   |   F: 800.725.0571   www.madi-arch.com 


 


30  S. Potrero St. Suite  | Santa Cruz, 95060
40 S. First St. Suite A | San Jose CA, 95113
3 5


01-117561


New Shade Structure


Santa Cruz City Schools


#2: Groundwater Intrusion & Mitigation


CRW Industries


MADI Group, Inc.


9/10/18


9/18/18


No Exceptions Taken. The amount of $4,281.87 is acceptable.


Reviewed by:
MADI Group, Inc.
Presley Obenshain


55/202







DATE:  9/10/2018


Job Number: 5267 CONTRACTOR: CRW Industries Inc


  DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST EXTENSION


QUANTITY 
HOURS RATE EXTENSION QUANTITY UNIT COST EXTENSION


-$              $118.00 -$                          -$             


-$              -$                          -$             


 MATERIAL $0.00


 LABOR $0.00


 EQUIPMENT $0.00


SUBTOTAL DIRECT COSTS $0.00


FEE ON DIRECT COSTS (15%)


PRIME CONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $0.00


MbarC Construction $3,998.01


5% FEE ON SUBCONTRACTOR DIRECT COSTS $199.90


SUBCONTRACTOR SUBTOTAL $4,197.91


4,197.91$           


BOND ( not to exceed 2% of sub total) 83.96$                


TOTAL 4,281.87$    


PREPARED & SUBMITTED BY:  


COMPANY:  TITLE:


B40 SS Lunch Shelter/Playground


PCO #:  2


PCO  - COST PROPOSAL  -  PRIME CONTRACTOR


Groundwater Intrusion and Mitigation.


MATERIAL (sales tax included) LABOR (fully encumbered) EQUIPMENT (attach invoice)


SUBTOTALS:  


$0.00


Sub Contractor Costs from Attached Cost Proposal(s)


PCO SUBTOTAL


Bill Burr


CRW Pres


Cost Proposal
56/202







674 Rancheros Drive


San Marcos, CA 92069


CO #: 1


Revision #:


Date: 9/10/2018


A -$             


B -$             


C -$             


D -$             


E


F -$             


G -$             


H -$             


I 3,476.53$     


J


K


L Markup: 15%


M 0%


N


0


Project Customer:


Customer PM:


M Bar C PM:


Project Name / #:


SUMMARY


Branciforte Small Schools, #6513


STATUS:  


APPROVER DECISION:  


 included in backsheet


3,476.53$                 


3,476.53$                 


521.48$                    


-$                         


3,998.01$                 


Equipment


Total Change Order Value (add lines K + L + M)


Bond Premium:


Time extension request:


Labor


Material


Printed Name


Approver Signature Title Date


CRW Industries


Bill Burr


Andrew Lee


Subtotal of Change Order Scope Costs (add lines E + J)


Subtotal of Subcontractor Scope (add lines F - I)


Material


Equipment


Misc Expense


 included in backsheet


 included in backsheet


 included in backsheet


 included in backsheet


 included in backsheet


Change Order
FRONT SHEET


 day(s)


Misc Expense


Subtotal of M Bar C Scope (add lines A - D)


 included in backsheet


 included in backsheet


Description of Change:


GW Intrusion and Mitigation


M BAR C SCOPE


SUBCONTRACTOR SCOPE


-$                         


Labor


Completed Work Work In Progress Work On Hold Pending NTP


Approved Approved Per Revisions Rejected Deferred


57/202







Date: 9/10/2018


1


0


MISC


Unit Cost Total Cost Total Cost Rate Total Total


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


M Bar C Subtotals: -$               -$               -$               -$               


-$               


MISC


Unit Cost Total Cost Total Cost Rate Total Total


1 EA -$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 3,476.53$        


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


-$             -$                 -$                 -$            -$                 -$                 


Subcontractors Subtotals: -$               -$               -$               3,476.53$      


3,476.53$      


Change Order
BACK SHEET


Subcontractors Total:


DETAIL


Project Name / #: 


CO #: 


Revision #: 


Branciforte Small Schools, #6513


EQUIPMENT


EQUIPMENT


M Bar C Total:


ITEMS OF WORK FOR
QTY UNIT


LABOR MATERIAL


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


Subcontractors


Badger Daylighting Invoice


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


MATERIAL


M Bar C Unit Cost


ITEMS OF WORK FOR
QTY UNIT


LABOR


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


Unit Cost


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


-$            


58/202







59/202







60/202







Contract: Enviroplex: Natural Bridges Modernization


Separator Page


61/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Enviroplex Piggyback Proposal for Pre-Manufactured Restroom 
Building at Natural Bridges Elementary School 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Enviroplex piggyback proposal for the pre-manufactured restroom building at 
Natural Bridges Elementary school.  
 
Background: 
This proposal is for a new pre-manufactured 12x40 boys and girls restroom building for the 
Natural Bridges Modernization Project. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$180,526.87, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 3.41% of the overall site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


 
 


62/202







9/12/2018   1:52 PM


P-back 


Item #
Description Unit  Qty  Piggyback Price  Total 


1-STORY RIGID STEEL MOMENT FRAME BUILDINGS                1 


1010 12x40 boy's / girl's restroom where Ss< 1.875 EA                1  $         85,586.60  $             85,586.60 


Sub-floor options 0                1 


1104 Concrete Floor for 6 or less floors light weight fill, 3" fill (adder) Per module                1  $         12,362.46  $             12,362.46 


Concrete Foundations                1 


Standard Design (1500 psf soil bearing pressure, non-expansive soil and level ground)                1 


2211 Concrete Foundation Bolt Kit 50 or 65 Lb Floor EA                1  $                77.52  $                    77.52 


2214 Weld Plates EA                6  $              425.00  $               2,550.00 


2250
12x40 at grade foundation w/ 18" crawl space and 12" footing embedment (initial 


foundation segment) - High Seismic Zone
EA             1.2  $         23,530.00  $             28,236.00 


2300 2x4 access vent well with retained metal grate (Non ADA) EA                1  $           4,179.27  $               4,179.27 


2303 6' polyvent EA                1  $           2,387.15  $               2,387.15 


2304 12" high, 24 ga metal flashing Per lf            104  $                21.04  $               2,188.42 


PLUMBING                1 


5203 Hose bib, recessed (wall hydrant) EA                1  $           1,259.21  $               1,259.21 


5404 Toilet paper dispenser, surface mount, single roll, Bobrick B-264 EA              (6)  $                54.00  $                (323.98)


5405 Toilet paper dispenser, surface mount, multi-roll, Bobrick B-2888 EA                6  $              147.41  $                  884.49 


Flooring (all prices per sf unless otherwise noted)                1 


6100 Armstrong Connection Corlon Per sf            480  $                11.79  $               5,660.93 


6104 6" self cove (adder) Per lf            158  $                17.05  $               2,694.41 


Sub-Total  $     147,742.46 


PROJECT CLOSE OUT ITEMS                1 


1
Labor to close out site (exterior painting, ceiling tile installation, equipment start-


up and testing, light sweep out. Punchlist items)
hour              24  $                65.00 1,560.00$               


2
On-Site Labor (plumbing close-out) (assemble plumbing tree, attach fixtures, 


test connections, water tests)
hour              32  $              268.00 8,576.00$               


3 Crane day                1  $           9,500.00 9,500.00$               


4 Delivery (specialty trailers for concrete floors) floor                1  $           3,550.00 3,550.00$               


5 Installation floor                1  $           2,950.00 2,950.00$               


6 369.36$                  


7 Bond                1 1,551.30$               


8 Estimated Tax                1 4,727.76$               


            1 Grand Total 180,526.87$      


Notes:


1


2 -$                     -$                          


3


-$                     -$                          


Administrative Fee to Willows School District (Final Project Manual Section 00 2113; Item 16 Sub-section B) (.25% of 


piggyback contract item building price)


Any Foundation design charges include Structural engineering, review and stamp for DSA approval.


Additional design & foundation costs may be incurred if the site specific soils condition or CGS review prompt footings that are outside of 


Enviroplex's standard foundation design 


Pursuant to recent DSA guidelines as described on the new 1-MR form regarding the "Delegation of Authority for Modular & Relocatable 


Buildings", site specific inspection fees will be necessary if Enviroplex's structural engineer determines that he/she is required to personally 


inspect and observe construction site conditions and foundation progress. The scope and scale of this requirement will generally relate to a 


number of factors including, but not limited to, the experience of the foundation contractor, foundation design complexity, building square 


footage, geographic location and site & soils condition. These charges shall be owner responsibility and coordinated directly with Enviroplex's 


structural engineer. As outlined in the DSA bulletin, these responsibilities can be sub-delegated to the project's Architect of record at the 


owner's direction and discretion.


Santa  Cruz City Schools


12x40 Boys and Girls Restroom Building -- Natural Bridges School


2013 CBC


Pricing subject to final design and finishes


63/202







                  
4777 East Carpenter Road 


Stockton CA 95215-8106 


209-466-8000 


 


General Conditions 


 


 Pre-construction 
o Shop Drawings: Enviroplex shall submit shop drawings depicting floor plans, elevations, 


window and door size and locations, lighting and electrical device locations, low voltage 


infrastructure  locations, HVAC system locations and duct pathways, casework, plumbing 


fixtures and all general accessories including fire extinguishers, marker boards, TV brackets, 


restroom accessories, etc. Enviroplex’s shop drawings shall supersede the DSA approved 


drawings except for any items related to structural design, fire/life safety and ADA access. 


Approval of shop drawings is required not later than two weeks after submission. Enviroplex 


requires approval of shop drawings prior to initiation into production. Delayed approval will 


result in a change to the project schedule, unless otherwise agreed to by Enviroplex. Requested 


additions and/or deletions to Enviroplex’s shop drawings will be agreed to by change order if 


necessary. 


o Submittals: Enviroplex shall submit material submittals for all categories within the project 


including interior finishes, HVAC, doors and door hardware, windows, lighting and electrical, 


building accessories, restroom accessories, plumbing fixtures, exterior finishes and paint 


colors. Approval of submittals is required not later than two weeks after submission. 


Enviroplex requires of approval of submittals prior to initiation into production. Delayed 


approval will result in a change to the project schedule, unless otherwise agreed to by 


Enviroplex. Requested additions and/or deletions to Enviroplex’s submittals will be agreed to 


by change order if necessary. 


o 1MR: Owner/Architect will coordinate and contract with the ENV Structural Engineer 


to perform the onsite DSA 1-MR process. 


o C/O – Addition or deletion of project scope will not be performed by ENV without a 


signed and agreed upon change order document.   


 


 Site, Staging and Delivery 


o Staging:  OWNER to provide adequate level staging area for the modules within the 


boundaries of the project site or OWNER coordinated area within a quarter mile of the project 


site.   


o Site & Staging Access:  OWNER to provide the proper site access to Enviroplex for 


installation of the modular building.  OWNER will provide a clear or protected pathway from 


the project entrance to the modular building during the entire project duration.  Exceptions to 


this must be coordinated with Enviroplex and the OWNER.  The OWNER must provide at 


least a 50-foot buffer from one side and one end of the building with a surface suitable for 


trucking and crane use during the approved installation dates.  Enviroplex will coordinate and 


advise of any potential conflicts.  Enviroplex is not responsible for protection of utilities or 


equipment, trench plates, encroachment permits, tree or limb removal, fence removal, grading 


or soil compaction etc. in the pathway or the buffer zone.  Enviroplex not liable for damage to 


grass, sprinkler systems, asphalt, concrete or any OWNER surface if access requires traversing 


these surfaces. 


o Crane: Project sites that require a crane reach that exceed 40’- 45’ radius, will be at an 


additional cost or change order by OWNER. 


o Concrete:  Enviroplex will make a good faith effort to utilize any concrete protection the 


OWNER provides, but concrete is prone to breakage under heavy truck traffic regardless of 


protection.  OWNER will be responsible and repair any damage to concrete incurred during 


64/202







                  
4777 East Carpenter Road 


Stockton CA 95215-8106 


209-466-8000 


 


building construction due to inadequate protection that is within the approved building access 


pathway or buffer zone.  This includes sidewalks, curbs, driveways etc.   


o Overhead safety/Clearance at Project Site:  OWNER to ensure no overhead obstructions, 


notably live power wires, inhibit safe operation of a crane during installation.  Any power 


wires closer than 10’ (typically) to the crane boom during any portion of crane operation must 


be de-energized by the OWNER.  Any wires of any type that hang lower than 17’6” are at risk 


and are the responsibility of the OWNER to make the area accessible.  Enviroplex is not liable 


for damage. 


o Overhead Clearance to Project Site:  Enviroplex will make every attempt to determine 


adequate height routes to the project site, but overhead clearances on the construction site or 


entrance to the site must be at least 17’ from top or grade or coordinated with Enviroplex 


before shipment.  It is the responsibility of OWNER to make sure the buildings have proper 


height clearances or will make appropriate adjustments at their own expense. 


 Foundation and Building Pad Preparation 


o Concrete Foundation (if required): OWNER to provide properly prepped site per the project 


specifications & drawings. This will normally consist of a 27” deep (below grade) certified 


level pad for modular building concrete stem-wall foundation to be constructed within.  At the 


lowest foundation embedment depth, OWNER to provide subgrade to meet the minimum 


compaction/bearing capacity per the approved drawings & specifications.  Pad to be over 


excavated 2’ minimum beyond building footprint on all sides to allow for foundation work.  


Enviroplex will move spoils from its trenching operation within the pad to a pile outside of the 


foundation pad. Haul-off of all spoils including spoils from foundation footing trenching will 


be by the OWNER.  Backfilling the over excavated area after buildings are set is to be by the 


OWNER.  NOTE: 27” deep excavation facilitates the minimum 18” crawlspace.  


o Wood Foundation (if required):  (2) layer wood foundation quoted.  This, plus our 


building’s 9” bottom beam, elevates the building to 12” above grade.  Wood foundation as 


quoted requires level pad, 1000 PSF bearing.  Departures from this may require CO.  For any 


wood foundation installation, the transport truck must be able to park over desired building 


footprint and pull straight off of pad until trailer clears building.  If crane is needed because of 


site access issues, it would be by CO.  Pressure treated (Green) lumber is used for bottom layer 


of foundation only.  


o Weatherization: If construction of the foundation is to be conducted during periods of rain, 


ENV will only proceed with the foundation after a weatherization plan is established and costs 


approved by change order to the OWNER.  Any additional measures or repairs will be 


coordinated and approved by change order to the OWNER. 


o Utility Location:  OWNER will be responsible for identifying and marking all existing utility 


locations within and around the foundation certified pad.  ENV will have no responsibility for 


repairs of any system. 


o Fire Sprinklers: ENV to construct fire riser on the OWNER provided flanged stub that is a 


minimum of 6” above the finish grade.  Before erection of the fire riser, OWNER must 


provide certification for flushing of the fire line. 


o Drainage:  Gutters and downspouts are by Enviroplex.  Downspout transitions and tie-ins are 


by OWNER.  OWNER is responsible for installing storm drain tie-ins or point of connection 


(P.O.C.) for downspouts.  OWNER to coordinate locations of P.O.C. with Enviroplex for 


proper alignment and finish height of P.O.C. installed by OWNER.  Crawl-space drains are by 


OWNER.  


65/202







                  
4777 East Carpenter Road 


Stockton CA 95215-8106 


209-466-8000 


 


o Polyvents and Access wells: OWNER to provide finish grade elevation marked on the 


building or foundation before construction of the access well or installing the polyvents.  If no 


marks are provided, the access wells and/or polyvents will be installed at finish floor elev. 


o Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP):  Maintaining and administering a 


SWPPP program is by OWNER.  If conditions on site are muddy or questionable, site work 


and access will be coordinated with the OWNER. 


o Dust Control:  Dust control measures and documentation are by OWNER. 


o Survey: Surveying of building foundation corners and finish floor elevations will be by the 


OWNER. 


o Fencing: Fencing is by the OWNER. 


o Hygiene:  OWNER to provide adequate portable toilets & hand washing stations for 


Enviroplex workers on site. 


 Electrical. Low Voltage and Utility Tie-ins 


o Low Voltage: Low Voltage systems specifically excluded from the Enviroplex scope include 


but not limited to fire alarm, security, access control, lighting control, data, and phone.  


Wiring, systems components, boxes and conduits or any material and/or labor to install these 


components are excluded, except as noted in the following: Enviroplex will provide only 


utility boxes and associated conduit in the walls and, in the case of floor boxes, within the 


crawl space as depicted on the approved Enviroplex shop drawings.  The OWNER is 


responsible for reviewing and verifying the Enviroplex drawings.  Low Voltage 


boxes/conduits provided by Enviroplex will terminate in the attic space as a stub-up 2” from 


top of wall.  All cable raceways, grommets or hangers for devices, boxes, conduit or wiring 


within the ceiling and/or attic space, is by OWNER.  All specialized boxes unless noted in the 


ENV proposal are by OWNER. 


o Electrical Panels: Building main panel electrical systems/conduit provided by Enviroplex Inc 


will include only the main panel and a conduit stubbed out with an exterior threaded 


connection.  The electrical service within the building is by Enviroplex.  Main panel service 


side underground conduit and connection, site electrical equipment, cable, hookup, grounding 


and testing are by the OWNER.  Building main electrical panel grounding is by the OWNER.   


If routing of electrical conduits under the foundation is required, the OWNER must provide 


appropriate penetrations through the foundation as provided by the Enviroplex plans.  


o Sewer & Water utility tie in:  All wet utility tie in is by OWNER.  Enviroplex utility piping 


will terminate 6” from the foundation face and will exclude any metering, backflow devices or 


and OWNER regulating devices, equipment or improvements.   


o Gas Utility tie in: Building gas piping will be stubbed out of the building exterior finish 


approximately 2” for OWNER tie in.  ENV does not supply the regulator, seismic cutoff or 


any other materials or labor. 


 Interior Finishes and Punch List 
o Flooring:  The flooring must be installed last during the building site work phase.  Any 


damage occurring to the flooring caused by work of the OWNER continuing after floor install 


will be the responsibility of the OWNER.  Additionally, buildings must have the electrical 


service operational prior to finish flooring installation.  Defects arising from early installation 


of flooring are the responsibility of the OWNER. 


o Blocking & backer boards:  Only devices or objects specifically indicated on the Enviroplex 


plans will have mounting blocking installed in the walls.  Coordination of additional blocking 


must be made prior to commencement of production of the units.  This includes projectors, 


66/202







                  
4777 East Carpenter Road 


Stockton CA 95215-8106 


209-466-8000 


 


projection screens, paper dispensers, future items etc.  Any OWNER blocking must be 


coordinated with Enviroplex Inc. and will be paid through a change order. 


o Signage: All interior and exterior building signage is provided and installed by the OWNER 


o Keying: All keyed cylinders and keying is by OWNER. 


o Door Hardware Locksets: Door hardware locksets will be provided per approved submittals. 


Changes made to door hardware locksets after approval will be at additional cost by OWNER. 


o Structural Beam Penetrations: Beam penetrations may only be made per locations indicated 


on Enviroplex plan details 1 & 6/S3, S3A, or S3D. Beam penetrations that deviate from these 


locations will result in additional cost, and or change order by the OWNER. 


o Vandalism: Enviroplex will not be responsible for damage to modules resulting in vandalism, 


once modules are delivered, and staged on site.  


o Site Security: To be provided by OWNER/DIST./GC 


o Cleaning:  Enviroplex will perform scrap out and light sweep of building. Cleaning, dusting, 


floor prep, floor wax, wiping windows, vacuuming and any OWNER tasks related to 


preparation for occupancy is by OWNERs. 


o Punch list:  Enviroplex requires at least two calendar weeks of normal workday access 


between OWNER or representative list generation and building occupancy.   


67/202







68/202







69/202







70/202







71/202







Change Order #1: Fresh Start Painting – Natural Bridges


Gym Modernization & Repairs


Separator Page


72/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Change Order #1 for Fresh Start Painting Co. to Paint the Gym 
Ceiling for the Natural Bridges Modernization Project 


      
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the change order #1 for Fresh Start Painting Co. to paint the gym ceiling for the 
Natural Bridges modernization project. 
 
Background: 
This proposal consists of additional work to prime and paint the tile ceiling of the gym, to be 
billed on a time and materials basis. The original scope included painting the exterior buildings 
A, B, C, D and all of the portable buildings at Natural Bridges. The previously approved contract 
amount was $167,000.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be 
$183,000.00. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Change Order #1  $16,000.00 (9.58% increase of the contract amount) Measure B Funds 
(Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 
 


73/202







 


 


 


 


PCO REVIEW FORM 
 


DSA Number  


Project Description  


Client  


PCO #  


Issued by  Date  


Reviewed by  Date  


Comments:  
  


T: 800.725.0571   |   F: 800.725.0571   www.madi-arch.com 


 


30  S. Potrero St. Suite  | Santa Cruz, 95060
40 S. First St. Suite A | San Jose CA, 95113
3 5


N/A


Natural Bridges Campus Repainting


Santa Cruz City Schools


#1 - Prepare and paint tile ceiling in Gymnasium


Fresh Start Painting


MADI Group, Inc.


09/18/18


09/19/18


No Exceptions taken. The amount of $16,000 to paint the ceiling at Natural Bridges
Gym is appropriate.


Reviewed by:
MADI Group, Inc 
Presley Obenshain


74/202







FRESH START PAINTING Co. 


     


 


DIR: #1000024119 SB: #1797753     


   Proposal Bid 


Sept 18, 2018 


To:  Presley Obenshain, Project Coordinator, Madi Group, Inc. 


Regarding: Natural Bridges School Gym Ceiling Painting 


Fresh Start Painting will provide equipment, labor and materials to Prep, Prime and 


Paint the Gym Ceiling. We will protect and cover the entire floor area. Also, rent a 


Sissor Lift to Prime and Paint Beams and Duct Work. 


Interior Amount: $16,000. 


Thank you. 


Manoli Koutantos,  


650-222-7766 


Fresh Start Painting Co. 


 


 


Phone   (650) 222-7766 


License         #1024821 


 


 Millbrae, California             94030 


 


75/202







Staff Report: Food Services Update


Separator Page


76/202







                       


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Staff Report: Food Services Update 
     
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This report reflects current successes, shows the five-year trend of decreasing encroachment 
on the LCFF Base budget by Food Services, and provides a budget comparison for the last two 
years. Included is an overview comparison of like districts both locally and statewide.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


Prepared by Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director of Food Services 
 


 
 


77/202







Comparsion of like Districts State-Wide


Based on 2016-17 CBEDS / Unaudited Actuals


County Name Santa Cruz Los Angeles Marin San Diego San Diego


District
Santa Cruz City 


Elementary
Claremont Unified Navato Unified 


Lakeside Union 


Elementary
Ramona City Unified


# Elem 4 7 7 7 6


# MS 2 1 4 2 1


# HS 3 1 2 1


# Sp Ed 1


# Continuation Schools 1 1 1 1


# Community / Alternate 3 1 2 1 2


# Charter 1


Total Schools 14 12 16 10 11


Enrollment 6788 7066 7869 6313 5546


FRPM Count 2558 2525 2567 2587 2179


% Eligible FRPM 37.70% 35.70% 32.6% 41.0% 39.3%


Revenue 1,932,686 2,407,500 2,026,700 2,276,303 1,713,750


Expense Food & Supplies 892,573 1,255,200 871,191 1,101,767 529,019


Expense Employee 1,272,970 1,624,004 1,313,836 1,149,311 1,191,571


Indirect Charged 103,463 107,853 0 113,349 61,884


Excess Over Expenditures (336,320) (471,604) (158,327) (88,123) (68,724)


General Fund Contribution 345,880 430,000 135,000 0 0


Chg to fund balance 9,560 (41,604) (23,327) (88,123) (68,724)


Beginning fund balance 59,177 189,398 156,001 1,522,810 414,679


Ending Fund Balance 68,739 147,794 132,674 1,380,371 345,955


# of employees 28 55 40 35


# full time employees 17 20 26 13


% paid Benefits 100% @4hrs
$9,752 cap @4 hrs over 


cap emp pay 50%


90% @6hrs prorated for 


family at 70%-60%


$7,740 cap emp. @4 hrs 


Pay $60 single $75 


family


85%dist paid 15%emp 


@ 4hrs


Open Campus @HS Yes Yes Yes N/A


Self Operated Self operated Self Operated Self Operated Self Operated


breakfast Price 2.25      2.50 1.50     1.75     2.00 2.00     2.25 1.50      1.75 1.25       1.50


lunch Price 3.25      3.50 3.00     3.25     3.50 3.25     3.50 2.50       2.75 2.50      3.00


fund bal chg due to audit 


adjustment and 


investment in capital 


assets,   Spending plan 


per CDE


Created by: Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director Santa Cruz City Schools


Resources: CDE.ca.gov, District individual website, Directors 78/202







Comparsion of like Districts State-Wide


Based on 2016-17 CBEDS / Unaudited Actuals


San Luis Obispo San Luis Obispo Sonoma Sonoma Stanislaus Ventura


San Luis Coastal Unified
Paso Robles Joint 


Unified


Cotati- Rohnert Park 


Unified
Windsor Unified


Oakdale Joint Unified
Moorpark Unified


11 6 7 4 4 6


2 2 2 1 1 2


2 1 2 1 2 2


1 1 1


1 1 1 1 1 1


2 1 1


1 1


17 12 14 9 9 12


7718 6814 6272 5225 5277 6472


2584 3325 2527 1874 2088 2217


33.5% 48.8% 40.3% 35.9% 39.6% 34.3%


2,215,671 2,370,800 1,436,203 1,361,558 1,697,703


1,171,707 1,108,078 936,561 576,594 859,033


1,146,117 1,361,623 815,743 926,100 868,111


118,000 181,174 0 0 0


(220,153) (279,856) (315,102) (141,137) (29,441)


0 381,032 272,171 28,930 54,174


(220,153) 101,176 (42,931) (112,206) (29,441)


351,928 361,142 106,046 140,754 29,441


131,775 482,318 63,115 28,547 24,733


28 23 24 32


14 14 6 9


$5,000 cap @4 hrs 50% 


split after cap


$10,331 cap @ 6.5hrs 


select plan less 


difference to 125plan


75%@4hrs -100%@6hrs
80%dist paid 20% emp 


@6hrs


$8,050 cap @ 6hrs 


emp can cash out 


difference if plan is 


less


Equal assignment 


equal coverage ie 50% 


assignment 50% 


coverage


Yes Closed yes Yes


Self Operated Self Operated
Management Company 


Sydexo
Self Operated Self Operated


Self Operated  


Consultant Managed


2.00 2.00 2.00      2.25 1.75     2.00 1.60   1.80    2.00 2.00


3.00    3.25 3.00      3.25 3.00      3.25 2.75     3.00    3.25 2.65   2.90   3.05 3.00


Bond $ to redo kitchen 


then close campus as 


new faclity open


1700 students         500 


meal served


Created by: Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director Santa Cruz City Schools


Resources: CDE.ca.gov, District individual website, Directors 79/202







Comparison of Santa Cruz County Schools


Based on 2016-17 CBEDS / Unaudited Actuals


County Name Santa Cruz Santa Cruz Santa Cruz Santa Cruz Santa Cruz Santa Cruz


District
Santa Cruz City 


Elementary
Live Oak SD Soquel Union SD San Lorenzo ValleyUSD Scotts Valley SD Pajaro USD


# Elem 4 3 4 2 2 17


# MS 2 1 1 1 1 4


# HS 3 1 1 4


# Sped


# Continuation Schools 1 1


# Community / Alternate 3 1 3


# Charter 1 2 2 4


Total Schools 14 7 5 6 4 33


Enrollment 6788 2069 1981 4921 2505 20400


FRPM Count 2558 1094 666 820 243 11497


% Eligible FRPM 37.70% 52.90% 33.6% 16.7% 9.7% 56.4%


Revenue 1,932,686 1,055,699 457,519 470,072 490,150 10,672,126


Expense Food & Supplies 892,573 539,351 194,602 196,748 249,815 4,723,672


Expense Employee 1,272,970 482,571 291,543 293,950 255,800 5,821,589


Indirect Charged 103,463 52,231 0 0 0 424,130


Excess Over Expenditures (336,320) (18,452) (28,267) (20,626) (15,465) (297,266)


General Fund Contribution 345,880 0 0 20,078 0 0


Chg to fund balance 9,560 (18,452) (28,267) (548) (15,465) (297,266)


Beginning fund balance 59,177 26,184 61,160 12,763 47,695 4,681,386


Ending Fund Balance 68,739 7,732 32,533 12,214 32,230 4,384,121


# of employees 30 11 9 10 9 101


# full time employees 17 4 3 3 2 36


% paid Benefits 100% @4hrs 100% @6hrs 90% @ 6hrs
$10,020 cap @ 4hrs $96 


paid to uninsured
90% @ 6hrs 100% @4hrs


Open Campus @HS Yes N/A N/A 11th & 12th Yes CLOSED Yes


Self Operated Self operated Self Operated Self Operated Self Operated Self Operated


breakfast Price 2.50       2.75 2.00 2.00 2.50 2.50 1.25     1.50


lunch Price 3.50       3.75 2.75 3.00     3.25 3.50 3.50 2.75     3.00


Created by Amy Hedrick-Far, Director Santa Cruz City Schools


Resources: CDE.ca.gov and District individual websites Directors 80/202







October 3, 2018


Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director


81/202







*Increase in a la carte revenues


*Increased our catering revenues


*Decreased salaries & benefits


*Decreased food & supplies


*Decrease in General Fund Contribution


Fiscal Year 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18


Transfers In $450,000.00 $450,000.00 $150,000.00 $345,880.00 $103,407.00 


Deficit ($336,044.00) ($268,251.00) ($272,038.00) ($232,857.00) ($146,619.00)


82/202







Evaluation of 16-17 versus 17-18 16-17 17-18 Variance


Revenue


Federal $1,214,873.00 $1,133,909.87 ($80,963.13)


Other state $100,623.00 $82,899.82 ($17,723.18)


local $617,191.00 $653,401.53 $36,210.53 


total revenue $1,932,687.00 $1,870,211.22 ($62,475.78)


classified salaries $738,989.00 $698,648.83 ($40,340.17)


benefits $533,982.00 $521,631.98 ($12,350.02)


books and supplies $857,749.00 $769,807.70 ($87,941.30)


services $34,834.00 $26,742.58 ($8,091.42)


capital outlay


other outgo


total expenditures $2,165,554.00 $2,016,831.09 ($148,722.91)


excess/deficiency ($232,867.00) ($146,619.87) $86,247.13 


transfers in $345,880.00 $103,407.77 ($242,472.23)


transfers out ($103,463.00) $103,463.00 


total other $242,417.00 $103,407.77 ($139,009.23)


net change in fund balance $9,550.00 ($43,212.10) ($52,762.10)


fund balance july 1, 2016 $59,177.00 $68,737.00 


fund balance july 1, 2017 $68,737.00 $25,524.90 


83/202







*Contracting with School Services 


*Contracting with Transact for KPI study. (Key 


Performance Indicator) 


*Evaluate open and closed campus


84/202







*Our demographics are changing 


* Significant number of students off campus during lunch


* Providing good nutrition


* 300 more lunches daily = $202,500 yearly 


85/202







Do you have 


any questions?


Thank You


86/202







Staff Report: Bond Budget Update


Separator Page


87/202







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.1 
1DODD_ATJEUB-CCE041DDC3F841A9A15568FC662F0E7E.doc 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Staff Report:  Bond Budget Update 
 
MEETING DATE: October 3, 2018  
 
FROM: Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture will present a budget update on Bond Measures A and B. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 
 


88/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS |  BOARD MEET ING – 03  OCTOBER 2018


Program Budgets and Expenditure Summary


0 3  O c t o b e r  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


89/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Expenditures


$140,000,000


Program Snapshot


Measure A: High Schools


$68,000,000Measure B: Elementary Schools


Resource


Expenditures
thru Aug 2018


$16,472,342


$4,395568


$208,000,000Measure A|B Summary $20,867,910


The values indicated here are based upon the Bartos Architecture program management 
database, and indicate total expenditures throughout the program. 


These values are periodically reconciled with District records.


Remaining
Resource


$123,527,658


$63,604,432


$187,132,090


Measure A


11.7 %


Measure B


6.5%


Measure A|B


10%


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October June 2018
90/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Terminology


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Resource:   Funds available to site (including bond and state funds)


Allocation: Budgetary allocation based on latest cost estimate, and prioritizations with site teams


Expenditure to Date: Expenditures for a given project from November 2016 thru April 2018.


Projected FY 18|19: Expenditures anticipated (predicted) from 01 July through 30 June.


Percent Complete: Proportion of amount actually expended divided by the total site resource.


Multi Project Overhead: 5% of site resource for efforts not related to a specific project.


Utility Infrastructure: Site (outside of buildings) utilities. Drainage, Gas, Water, Electrical.


Multi Project Overhead
Project xyz
Project xyz
Utility Infrastructure


$
$
$
$


$
$
$
$


Allocation


$ TotalAllocated so far


Projected
FY 18|19


$
$
$
$


Expenditures
To Date


Current Resource     $xx,xxx,xxx


$ Total $ Total


A


B C DE % Complete


F


G


A


B


C


D


E


F


G


91/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Multi Project Overhead
Parking Lot Improvements
Re-Roofing
Street Presence
Music Building
Classroom Mod Phase 1
MPR Modernization
Classroom Mod Phase 2
Admin/Library Improvements
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$865,945
$308,179


$1,165,047
$749,889
$917,815


$3,223,385
$920,967


$6,764,733
$1,240,845


N/A
$200,000
$300,000


$74,283
$18,723


$1,202,275
N/A


$7,879
$20,714


N/A
N/A
N/A


$7,445
N/A
N/A


$1,320,828


Allocation


$16,656,806Allocated so far


Projected
FY 18|19


$120,829
$280,392


-
$110,639
$320,483
$475,581
$135,880


-
-


N/A
$142,105
$189,474


$1,775,383


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Branciforte MS  Current Resource     $17,318,892 Expenditures
To Aug 31


7.6%


92/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Mission Hill Middle School   Current Site Resource   $18,353,153


Multi-Project Overhead
Hardscape|Landscape (Front Lawn)
Roof Replacement Ph 1
Roof Replacement Ph 2
Mod Ph 1 (perm walls, hvac)
Mod Ph 2 (main building)
New Classroom Building
Gym Mod Ph 1 (locker room imprv)
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Exterior Site Security (Fencing)


$917,658
$1,089,956
$1,528,613


$871,965
$243,604


$1,360,000
$9,000,000


$60,502
TBD


$230,000
$375,000
$100,000


$108,588
$281,393


$1,310,294
N/A


$34,856
N/A
N/A


$40,475
$7,112


N/A
N/A
N/A


$1,782,717$15,777,298Allocated so far


$128,045
$808,563
$218,319
$161,913
$114,122
$467,339
$565,332


$20,027
TBD


$104,211
$236,842


TBD


$2,824,713


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


9.7% 


93/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Harbor High School       Current Resource  $29,789,743


Multi Project Overhead
Athletic Fields Improvements
Pool and Weight Room Replacement
Music/Theater Art Modernization
Classroom Modernization
Re-roof
Student Lockers
New Electrical Service
Tennis Court Remodel
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$ 1,489,487
$9,476,400
$9,640,728
$3,407,844
$2,415,976
$1,336,680


$261,017
$369,315
$221,362


TBD
$460,000
$575,000


$63,249
$6,560,882


$387,390
$58,140


$7,548
$1,121,347


$14,038
$19,783


N/A
$7,696


N/A
N/A


$8,240,768Allocated so far


$207,835
$4,840,679
$7,156,265


$875,239
TBD


$902,076
$199,685
$301,553
$149,389


TBD
$24,444
$46,084


$14,703,249


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


$29,653,809
27 % 


94/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Santa Cruz HS      Current Resource          $32,217,006


Multi Project Overhead
Mod Ph 1: (water line|leaks)
Mod Ph 2: (Caf, restroom, classroom)
Mod Ph 3: (Math, Sci, Library)
Gym Mod Phase 1: (paint, pads, acoust)
Gym Mod Phase 2: (entry, locker rms)
New Pool House (restrooms)
Fields
Re-Roof
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$1,610,850
$458,072


$4,197,640
$2,469,457


$435,982
$4,422,342
$1,725,204
$1,437,464
$2,165,636


$500,000
$650,000


$126,594
$341,374


$37,188
N/A


$189,478
N/A
N/A


$1,437,464
$1,000,704


N/A
N/A


$3,132,802Allocated so far $20,072,647


$224,770
$116,698
$283,857


$69,580
$246,504
$922,210
$359,764


N/A
$1,164,932


$227,368
$410,526


$4,026,209


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


10 %


95/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Soquel High School       Current Resource   $34,908,502


Multi Project Overhead
Site Infrastructure (safety, elec, drainage)
New Concession Building & Ramp
Tennis Courts
Mod Phase 1: Reverse TI
Mod Phase 2: Wing 100
Mod Phase 3: Wing 200
Mod Phase 4: Wing 300
Site Work
Pool 
Fields
Card Access Security System
Interim Housing
Data Infrastructure


$1,703,567
$4,829,006
$1,568,966


$221,362
$366,000


$6,097,267
$5,878,868
$3,000,000


$610,000
$7,502,689
$1,527,272


$310,000
TBD


$700,000


$122,731
$77,442


$146,057
$21,601
$21,119


N/A
N/A


$400,000
N/A


$2,603551
$1,527,272


N/A
$60,420


N/A


$4,980,193$31,314,997Allocated so far


$335,128
$3,820,984
$1,438,384


$130,942
$344,881


$3,878,262
$407,740


N/A
$6,547,670


N/A
$24,845


TBD
$100,000


$17,028,836


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


14%


96/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Bayview ES              Current Resource       $13,961,998


Multi-Project Overhead
Re-Roofing
New Kinder & Sitework
New Classroom Building & Sitework
Mod Phase 1 
Mod Phase 2
Portable Demolition & Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Fire Line


$698,100
$925,529


$1,587,408
$2,598,727
$3,416,000
$3,050,000


$732,000
TBD


$190,000
$300,000
$488,000


$36,464
$925,529


$57,777
$37,725
$70,090


N/A
$1,500
$7,484


N/A
N/A
N/A


$1,078,850$13,985,764Allocated so far


$137,331
N/A


$163,574
$2,023,986


$308,000
$244,444


$58,667
TBD


$9,617
$24,044


$288,667


$3,258,330


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


8 %


97/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


DeLaveaga ES              Current Resource   $14,861,844


Multi-Project Overhead
New Shade Structure & Parking Lot
New Classrooms
Re-Roofing
Mod Phase 1 (Classrooms)
Mod Phase 2 (Special spaces)
Portable Demolition & Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$743,092
$1,600,008
$2,465,262


$335,439
$4,270,000
$4,270,000


$854,000
TBD


$200,000
$330,000


$34,848
$326,316


$89,413
N/A


$86,240
N/A


$30,830
$6,098


N/A
N/A


$606,518


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$15,356,468Allocated so far


$146,182
$912,791


$1,920,039
$36,293


$385,000
$342,222


$68,444
TBD


$10,018
$26,448


$3,847,437


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


4%


98/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Gault ES                         Current Resource   $11,115,429


Multi Project Overhead
Roofing
New Classroom Building
Mod Phase 1 Water intrusion
Mod Phase 2 Main Building
Mod Phase 3 : Windows/Paint
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$550,771
$900,354


$6,500,000
$56,022


$2,080,610
$650,000


TBD
$110,000
$225,000


$81,048
$625,181


N/A
$3,219
$1,730


TBD
$3,620


N/A
N/A


$714,799


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$11,072,757Allocated so far


$109,332
$275,173
$339,733


$52,803
$213,786
$272,131


TBD
$80,000


$225,000


$1,567,958


Allocation
Projected
FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


6.4%


99/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Natural Bridges      Current Resource         $5,421,709


Multi-Project Overhead
Campus Re-Roofing
Int Gym Mod and Parking Lot
Ext Gym Repairs and Restroom Addition
Repainting and Repairs
Utility Infrastructure
Artificial Field


$272,682
$1,438,439


$533,626
$732,000
$203,740


TBD
$2,440,000


$11,085
$1,393,787


$190,809
$39,312
$27,528


$2,626
N/A


$1,670,875


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Allocated so far $5,620,487


$53,642
$44,652


$307,637
$526,588


$93,997
TBD


$50,000


$1,076,516


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


30%


100/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Westlake ES                 Current Resource     $13,921,491


Multi-Project Overhead
New Upper Classroom
Modernize Phase 1 Upper
Modernize Phase 2 Lower
Site Improvements
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements
Parking Lot


$696,075
$5,393,293
$1,288,673
$1,381,429


$466,054
TBD


$120,000
$335,000
$500,000


$74,554
$2,100
$3,806
$2,838


N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A


$83,298


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$10,180,524Allocated so far


$136,933
$641,006


$50,000
$50,000
$88,092


TBD
$120,000
$335,000
$500,000


$1,921,031


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


1%


101/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Branciforte Small Schools   Current Resource     $10,345,332


Multi-Project Overhead
Relocate Playground and Lunch Shelter
Portable replacement
Alternative Family Ed Campus
Mod Phase 1 
Mod Phase 2
Portable Demolition and Site Work
Utility Infrastructure
Card Access Security System
Data Infrastructure Improvements


$521,068
$740,215


$1,925,978
$2,484,569
$1,830,000
$1,830,000


$671,000
TBD


$135,000
$250,000


$25,612
$119,328


$60,450
$29,930
$71,741


N/A
N/A


$6,098
N/A
N/A


$313,159


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$10,387,830


$102,505
$499,544


$1,500,024
$192,016
$200,000
$146,667


$53,778
TBD


$6,812
$20,036


$2,721,382


Allocation


Projected
FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018


Expenditures
To Aug 31


2.5%


102/202







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update


END


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y03 October 2018
103/202







Staff Report: Parcel Tax Update


Separator Page


104/202







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3 


1DODD_ATJEUB-4AB17BA354714D14A92D452AFA4B6DE5 


 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Staff Report:  Parcel Tax Update 
 
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff will present an update on the Measures I, J, O and P parcel taxes.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total estimated revenue for 2018-19 from the four parcel taxes is $6,675,380. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


 


105/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


STAFF REPORT: PARCEL TAX UPDATE
Board Meeting of October 3, 2018


106/202







Measure I


• Approved: June 2012


• Duration: July 2013 - June 2021


• Assessment: $38 per year per parcel in high 


school district, generating $1,277,978


• Funds: Grade 9-12 Library and Counseling 


services


107/202







Measure J


• Approved: June 2012


• Duration: July 2013 - June 2021


• Assessment: $85 per year per parcel in 


elementary district, generating $1,331,355


• Funds: Grades K-8 Art and Music 


programs, Library programs and 


Counseling services
108/202







Measure O
• Approved: November 2015


• Duration: July 2016-June 2024


• Assessment: $72 per parcel per year in high school 


district, generating $2,421,432


• Funds: middle and high school student career 


technical education, STEM (science, 


technology,engineering and math) programs, visual 


and performing arts and job-training instructional 


programs; and after-school athletic and enrichment 


programs in middle and high schools to protect 


student safety, health and well-being.
109/202







Measure P


• Approved: November 2015


• Duration: July 2016-June 2024


• Assessment: $105 per year per parcel in 


elementary district generating $1,644,615


• Funds: Grade K-3 class size reduction, 


lowered class sizes in grades 4-6, library 


services, art supplies, Life Lab, and a variety 


of other K-6 programs.
110/202







Next Steps:


January, 2019: District will 


propose  contract with consultant 


to:


• Assist in plan to renewing 


parcel taxes


• Conduct poll of community


• Identify renewal options
111/202







New Business: Business Services: Contract: SCCC/COE


for new Financial System ESCAPE


Separator Page


112/202







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.4 


1DODD_ATJEUB-169C925102AF4D6D8DB251C786F69087 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Memorandum of Understanding with Santa Cruz County Office 


of Education regarding Implementation of Escape Technology Financial 
System 


 
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Santa Cruz County Office of Education (SCCOE) 
regarding implementation of Escape Technology Financial System.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Santa Cruz County School Districts (SCCSD’s) together identified a need to review other Financial 
Systems to replace the existing system known as Digital Schools (DS).  The SCCOE and the SCCSD’s 
began reviewing systems in June 2018 with the desire to find a replacement and implement by July 1, 
2019.  After initial presentations and a conversation with the current system’s new owner, a Request 
for Proposal (RFP) was issued and distributed in July, 2018.  Simultaneously, the districts reviewed the 
most prominent systems in the State.  These are Escape Technology and QSS.  The initial reviews were 
done with mini demos by the vendors and two site user visits.  The site user visits were with North 
Monterey Unified School District, a user of Escape Technology, and with San Benito County Office of 
Education, a QSS user.  The demos were done in August 2018.  After the RFP closed, the three vendors 
that submitted RFP’s were evaluated : 


QSS 
Escape Technology  
Tyler Munis 


All three were invited to present to a broader group of users from the districts.  Tyler Munis 
respectfully declined the offer.  The other two vendors presented in the month of September.  After 
discussion, a unanimous decision was made by the Districts to move forward with Escape Technology.   
 
The MOU attached is between the Districts and the SCCOE to implement the new Financial System by 
July 1, 2019 for HR/Payroll and to implement the other components shortly thereafter.  Because the 
implementation time before July 1 is only nine months, this is the implementation process suggested 
by the vendor to ensure success.   If possible, the full system will be implemented by July 1, 2019. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
For the first year, the estimated cost to SCCS and Delta Charter Schools is $76,491.  The estimated five 
year cost to the District and Delta is $665,453.  On an annual basis, the increase in cost over the 
current financial system’s cost is approximately $83,609.  Costs will be paid from the General Fund. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


113/202







 
 


 


 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
BETWEEN THE BONNY DOON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, HAPPY VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT, LIVE OAK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, MOUNTAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
PACIFIC ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, SCOTTS VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, SOQUEL 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, SAN LORENZO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, SANTA CRUZ CITY 
SCHOOLS, PAJARO VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, PACIFIC COLLEGIATE  AND THE SANTA CRUZ 
COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION FOR THE PROVISION OF A COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL AND HUMAN 
RESOURCES MANAGEMENT SYSTEM  
 
Background 
 
For many years the SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION (SCCOE) and all ten Santa Cruz County 
School Districts (Districts) have used software developed by Digital Schools.  The SCCOE hosts and operates 
the system for the SCCOE, PCS and all ten districts. 
 
In early 2018 SCCOE and the Districts agreed to collectively research possible alternative software systems. 
An RFP was issued in July 2018, proposals were evaluated, visits were scheduled for viewing of the systems 
with current user sites and four days were scheduled with vendor reviews.  In September 2018 the School 
Districts and the SCCOE selected Escape Technology as the vendor offering the best overall product quality 
and performance. 
 
The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to establish and document the method by 
which SCCOE and the Districts will share the costs and responsibilities of implementing, operating, and 
supporting the Escape System. 
 
Provisions 
 
1. SCCOE will enter into contract with Escape Technology on behalf of the SCCOE and the Districts for the 


implementation, licensing and support of the Escape Online 5 product. The term of the contract shall 
be five years extending through the end of the 2022-2023 fiscal year.  The contract has the option to 
auto-renew on the same terms and subject to the same rates.   The SCCOE and the Districts agree to 
utilize the county-wide implementation of Escape Online 5 as managed by the SCCOE, for the duration 
of the contract and renew under the renewal option unless the SCCOE and the Districts mutually agree 
to switch to another product at the renewal timeframe or to alter or terminate this MOU. The Districts 
agree to be bound by the terms of SCCOE’s contract with Escape as they pertain to the roles and 
responsibilities of users of Escape Online 5. 
 


2. The SCCOE shall provide Tier I support to the Districts for Escape Online 5.  The SCCOE support staff 
will refer higher tier support requests to the Escape Technology staff as needed.  
 


3. The SCCOE agrees to pay on behalf of all districts $500,000 which includes the full one-time projected 
implementation costs as specified in Escape proposal estimated at $355,178 including hardware 
estimated at $34,428 and $144,822 toward the Initial licensing cost.   


 


BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Ms. Jane Royer Barr 
Ms. Rose Filicetti 
Ms. Sandra Nichols 
Ms. Sue Roth 
Mr. Dana M. Sales 
Mr. Abel Sanchez 
Mr. Bruce Van Allen 


 


Michael C. Watkins, Superintendent • 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 • 831-466-5600 • FAX 831-466-5607 • www.santacruzcoe.org 


 


114/202







Escape Technology MOU  


October 2018 


 
4. On behalf of the districts the SCCOE was able to negotiate a credit of $50,000 toward the Human 


Resource Authorization (HRA) tools for automated approval processing with position control.  
 


5. The SCCOE shall appoint a county-wide Implementation Manager to coordinate all implementation 
activities. The SCCOE and each of the Districts all agree to fully cooperate in the implementation of 
Escape Online 5. Districts agree to appoint a designated staff person to act as the district Project 
Manager. The SCCOE shall assume the County-wide Implementation management responsibilities for 
Mountain Elementary, Happy Valley Elementary, Bonny Doon Elementary and Pacific Elementary. The 
SCCOE and each District all agree to review all Escape implementation communications, plans, and 
calendars and to identify scheduling conflicts in a timely manner. Each District will make the necessary 
staff available for all required implementation activities. Districts acknowledge that Escape will bill 
$250/person/hour and ($400/person/day for travel costs) and travel and lodging expenses (where 
required) during implementation for additional Escape staff time needed. If District staff scheduled for 
an implementation activity do not attend as scheduled, Escape will bill $2,000 per day, billed in one-
half day increments, for up to ten people, to attend training performed at SCCOE or District premises. 
Each District agrees that they will pay, in full, any extra implementation costs beyond those covered in 
Item 3 above, that are incurred because the District failed to make the requisite staff or other 
resources available for implementation activities.  In addition, all districts agree to be bound by the 
overall agreement criteria established in the Software Service Agreement made between the SCCOE 
and Escape Technology on behalf of the districts and the SCCOE. 
 


6. Upon signing of the Master contract with Escape, the SCCOE and the Districts agree to split the costs of 
the Escape Online 5 licensing fees according to W2’s.  The chart below illustrates the initial estimated 
costs by district:  


 


 
 
Escape will bill the SCCOE for licensing fees on an annual basis; cost is initially based on W2’s employed 
by SCCOE and the Districts combined with an annual increase of 4% per year.  The full payment will be 
due in July.  The SCCOE will process the transfers for payment from the districts from the account 
identified by the district in July of each year.   
 


W2's Escape Yr 1 Escape Yr 2 Escape Yr 3 Escape Yr 4 Escape Yr 5 5 Year Total


Annual User License 2017 547,192              729,589              758,773              789,123              820,688              3,645,365           


COE Contribution deduct from 


Annual Licence Fee 144,822              144,822              


Bonny Doon 47 2,052                   3,721                   3,870                   4,025                   4,186                   17,853                 


Happy Valley 49 2,133                   3,867                   4,021                   4,182                   4,350                   18,553                 


Live Oak Elementary & Charter 630 27,643                 50,123                 52,128                 54,213                 56,381                 240,487              


Mountain 34 1,489                   2,699                   2,807                   2,920                   3,037                   12,952                 


Pacific 69 3,018                   5,472                   5,691                   5,918                   6,155                   26,254                 


Scotts Valley 542 23,780                 43,119                 44,843                 46,637                 48,503                 206,882              


Soquel 513 22,533                 40,857                 42,491                 44,191                 45,959                 196,030              


San Lorenzo Valley & Charter 574 25,188                 45,672                 47,499                 49,399                 51,375                 219,134              


Santa Cruz City Schools & Charter 1743 76,491                 138,695              144,243              150,012              156,013              665,453              


* Pajaro Valley 3980 174,669              316,715              329,383              342,558              356,261              1,519,586           


COE 838 36,817                 66,757                 69,428                 72,205                 75,093                 320,300              


COE Contribution to annual 144,822              144,822              


COE Contribution to Impl 355,178              355,178              


Total COE first year 536,817              536,817              


Pacific Collegiate Charter 149 6,559                   11,892                 12,368                 12,863                 13,377                 57,059                 


Total 9168 902,370              729,589              758,773              789,123              820,688              4,000,543           


Total 1st year with  COE 


Contribution. 402,370              729,589              758,773              789,123              820,688              3,500,543           


115/202







Escape Technology MOU  


October 2018 


 
The payment for the first year of implementation will be due upon signing the contract.  The COE will 
pay the initial invoice and invoice each district for their first year cost in October 2018.   


7. Districts acknowledge that the SCCOE has entered into the agreement with Escape Technology based 
on mutual agreement with the districts to proceed with the implementation.  And Districts agree to 
abide by the agreements set out in the Master Agreement including all Exhibits.  


Conclusion 
 
The term of this MOU is expected to be from October 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023 (5 years) which 
coincides with the Master agreement between the SCCOE and Escape. The terms and implementation of 
this MOU may be reviewed annually by SCCOE and the Districts. The terms and conditions of this MOU 
may be changed at any time by mutual agreement of SCCOE and the ten Districts but the terms and 
conditions of the Master Agreement between ESCAPE and the SCCOE must always be met by the districts 
in the County.   Any changes in this agreement will be documented in a formal amendment to it, or by a 
revised agreement signed by an authorized signatory of SCCOE and each of the Districts. 
 
SCCOE will give Digital Schools (DS) notice as of October 1, 2018.  Notice per contract must be twelve (12) 
months prior to termination.  The full fee for the 12 months will be due upon termination.  The SCCOE will 
pay the fee up front and bill the districts quarterly (as is normal for DS) over the next twelve month period. 
 
These terms and conditions stated above are hereby agreed upon by the undersigned. 
  
 
_______________________________   _____________________________ 
Superintendent or Designee/Date  Superintendent or Designee/ Date 
Bonny Doon Union Elementary District  Pajaro Valley Unified School District 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Superintendent or Designee/Date  Superintendent or Designee/Date 
Happy Valley Elementary School District  San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District 
 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
Superintendent or Designee/Date  Superintendent or Designee/Date 
Live Oak Elementary School District  Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _______________________________  
Superintendent or Designee/Date  Superintendent or Designee /Date 
Mountain Elementary School District  Scotts Valley Unified School District 
 
 
 
 


116/202







Escape Technology MOU  


October 2018 


 
_______________________________  _______________________________ 
Superintendent or Designee/Date  Superintendent or Designee /Date 
Pacific Elementary School District  Soquel Elementary School District 
 
 
________________________________ 
Superintendent or Designee/Date 
Santa Cruz County Office of Education 


 


117/202







New Business: Board Policies Updates: Final Reading


Separator Page


118/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/new policies as submitted for final reading and adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board of Education reviewed and approved these policies for first reading on September 
26, 2018.  They return tonight for final adoption.  Policies are submitted through the GAMUT 
online board policy book updating process, which uses CSBA recommendations for review and 
change approximately six times per year in participating districts.  These recommendations 
reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by 
staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.   
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed revised 
policies precede current documents for your review.  If a policy is submitted for deletion, there 
is no new policy for review.  If the policy is new to our district, there is no current policy for 
review.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


119/202







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2018 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


 


 
BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which (1) adds immigration status to the categories of 


characteristics that are protected against discrimination, (2) requires parent/guardian notification of their 


child's right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, and (3) mandates 


that districts adopt policy consistent with a model policy developed by the California Attorney General, 


which includes a statement regarding equitable services. Policy also reflects provisions of the Attorney 


General's model policy and NEW LAW (SB 31) which prohibit districts from compiling or assisting in the 


compilation of a registry based on immigration status, religion, or other specified characteristics. 


 


BP 3514 - Environmental Safety 


(BP NEW to SCCS) 


Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 746) which provides that, if a community water 


system finds lead above specified levels in a school's potable water system, the district must notify 


parents/guardians, shut down fountains and faucets, and provide a source of drinking water to students. Policy 


also deletes details regarding district strategies that are duplicated in the AR.  


 


BP 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect legal requirements regarding toxic art and craft supplies, formerly in BP 6161.3 - 


Toxic Art Supplies. 


 


BP 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan 


(BP revised) 


Policy expands paragraph on the involvement of staff and community groups in plan development, consistent 


with U.S. Department of Education recommendation. Policy also adds training on staff responsibilities in an 


emergency or disaster, clarifies staff's legal obligation to serve as disaster service workers, and clarifies that 


board members are not considered disaster service workers.  


 


BP 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to add staff training on procedures for responding to an active shooter situation, condense 


options on pepper spray to recommend that any possession of pepper spray by employees require advance 


written permission, and reflect renumbering of legal cite pertaining to pepper spray.  


 


BP 5111 - Admission 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect state law prohibiting the collection of social security numbers or the last four digits 


of the social security numbers of students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required by law. Policy 


also reflects NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits districts from inquiring into students' citizenship or  


immigration status and the California Attorney General's model policy which provides that, under the limited 


circumstances when such information must be collected to comply with eligibility requirements for special  


state or federal programs, such information should be collected separately from the school enrollment 


process.  


 


 


 


120/202







 


POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


May 2018 


Page 2 of 2 
 


 


 


BP 5111.1 - District Residency 


(BP revised) 


Policy and regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits districts from collecting 


information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family 


members.  


 
BP 5125 - Student Records 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect the California Attorney General's model policy, developed pursuant to NEW LAW 


(AB 699), which (1) prohibits districts from collecting information regarding students' citizenship or 


immigration status, and (2) requires district staff to receive training in the gathering and handling of sensitive 


student information. Policy also reflects state law limiting the collection of students' social security numbers 


or the last four digits of the social security numbers, and NEW LAW (SB 31) which prohibits districts from 


assisting in the compilation of a list, registry, or database based on students' national origin, ethnicity, or 


religion.   


 


BP 5131.2 - Bullying 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which requires districts to educate students about the negative 


impact of bullying based on actual or perceived immigration status or religious beliefs and customs. Policy 


also reflects the California Attorney General's model policy developed pursuant to AB 699, which requires 


staff training with specified components related to bullying prevention and response. 


 


BP 5145.3 – Nondiscrimination/Harassment 


(BP Revised) 


Minor revisions made in policy and regulation to reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits 


discrimination based on immigration status. 


 


BP 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to define hate-motivated behavior and expand material related to collaboration, staff training, 


and enforcement of rules regarding student conduct. Policy also provides for the use of uniform complaint 


procedures when the behavior is determined to be based on unlawful discrimination. 


 


BP 6163.2 – Animals at School 


(New to SCCS) 


Policy is new to Santa Cruz City Schools and has been brought forward for adoption by Superintendent 


Munro. 


 


121/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities 
 


BP 0410  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in district 


programs and activities. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful 


discrimination, including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, 


age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual 


orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information; a perception of 


one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of 


these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 


(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


 


All individuals shall be treated equitably in the receipt of district and school services. Personally 


identifiable information collected in the implementation of any district program, including, but 


not limited to, student and family information for the free and reduced-price lunch program, 


transportation, or any other educational program, shall be used only for the purposes of the 


program, except when the Superintendent or designee authorizes its use for another purpose in 


accordance with law. Resources and data collected by the district shall not be used, directly or by 


others, to compile a list, registry, or database of individuals based on race, gender, sexual 


orientation, religion, ethnicity, national origin, or immigration status or any other category 


identified above. 


 


122/202







(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


District programs and activities shall be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory school 


or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually review district programs and activities to ensure 


the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may 


unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from 


accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to 


remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and 


recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


 


All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated 


and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 


Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 


students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and 


employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on 


nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in the 


annual parental notification distributed pursuant to Education Code 48980 and, as applicable, in 


announcements, bulletins, catalogs, handbooks, application forms, or other materials distributed 


by the district. The notification shall also be posted on the district's web site and social media 


and in district schools and offices, including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, 


and other prominent locations as appropriate. 


 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


In addition, the annual parental notification shall inform parents/guardians of their children's 


right to a free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs, including 


information on educational rights issued by the California Attorney General. Alternatively, such 


information may be provided through any other cost-effective means determined by the 


Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 234.7) 


 


The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a 


format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's 


students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated 


123/202







into that other language. 


 


Access for Individuals with Disabilities 


 


District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. 


When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with 


disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee 


shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes. 


 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids 


and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to 


participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may 


include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, 


assistive technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web 


sites, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large-print materials. Individuals 


with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires 


special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-


sponsored function, program, or meeting. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee 


responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state 


federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall 


receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and 


shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services, 


activities, or facilities. 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 


133 Mission Street, Suite 100 


Santa Cruz, CA 95060 


831-429-3410 x248 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48980  Parental notifications 


124/202







48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


51007  Legislative intent:  state policy 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


8310.3  California Religious Freedom Act 


11000  Definitions 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


54953.2  Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 


1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


2301-2414  Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act 


6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


2000h-2000h-6  Title IX 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 


104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students 


Against Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 


California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


125/202







Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010 


Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010 


Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 


WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 


Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


Pacific ADA Center:  http://www.adapacific.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act:  


http://www.ada.gov 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative:  http://www.w3.org/wai 


 


 


 


 


126/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities 
 


BP 0410  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing equal opportunity for all individuals in 


education. District programs, activities, and practices shall be free from unlawful discrimination, 


including discrimination against an individual or group based on race, color, ancestry, 


nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or 


parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or 


expression, or genetic information; a perception of one or more of such characteristics; or 


association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 


(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


 


District programs and activities shall also be free of any racially derogatory or discriminatory 


school or athletic team names, mascots, or nicknames. 


 


Annually, the Superintendent or designee shall review district programs and activities to ensure 


the removal of any derogatory or discriminatory name, image, practice, or other barrier that may 


unlawfully prevent an individual or group in any of the protected categories stated above from 


accessing district programs and activities. He/she shall take prompt, reasonable actions to 


remove any identified barrier. The Superintendent or designee shall report his/her findings and 


recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


 


127/202







All allegations of unlawful discrimination in district programs and activities shall be investigated 


and resolved in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint 


Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


Pursuant to 34 CFR 104.8 and 34 CFR 106.9, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 


students, parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, applicants for admission and 


employment, and sources of referral for applicants about the district's policy on 


nondiscrimination and related complaint procedures. Such notification shall be included in each 


announcement, bulletin, catalog, handbook, application form, or other materials distributed to 


these groups and, as applicable, to the public. As appropriate, such notification shall be posted in 


district schools and offices, including staff lounges, student government meeting rooms, and 


other prominent locations and shall be posted on the district's web site and, when available, 


district-supported social media. 


 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The district's nondiscrimination policy and related informational materials shall be published in a 


format that parents/guardians can understand. In addition, when 15 percent or more of a school's 


students speak a single primary language other than English, those materials shall be translated 


into that other language. 


 


Access for Individuals with Disabilities 


 


District programs and facilities, viewed in their entirety, shall be in compliance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and any implementing standards and/or regulations. 


When structural changes to existing district facilities are needed to provide individuals with 


disabilities access to programs, services, activities, or facilities, the Superintendent or designee 


shall develop a transition plan that sets forth the steps for completing the changes. 


 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district provides appropriate auxiliary aids 


and services when necessary to afford individuals with disabilities equal opportunity to 


participate in or enjoy the benefits of a service, program, or activity. These aids and services may 


include, but are not limited to, qualified interpreters or readers, assistive listening devices, 


assistive technologies or other modifications to increase accessibility to district and school web 


sites, notetakers, written materials, taped text, and Braille or large print materials. Individuals 


with disabilities shall notify the Superintendent or principal if they have a disability that requires 


special assistance or services. Reasonable notification should be given prior to a school-


128/202







sponsored function, program, or meeting. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


The individual identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the employee 


responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state 


and federal civil rights laws is hereby designated as the district's ADA coordinator. He/she shall 


receive and address requests for accommodation submitted by individuals with disabilities, and 


shall investigate and resolve complaints regarding their access to district programs, services, 


activities, or facilities. 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources - Personnel Issues 


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


(831) 429-3410 x233 


 


Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services - Student Issues 


405 Old San Jose Road 


Soquel, CA 95073 


(831) 429-3410 x248 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


51007  Legislative intent: state policy 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11000  Definitions 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


11138  Rules and regulations 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


54953.2  Brown Act compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 


1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 


2301-2415  Carl D. Perkins Vocational and Applied Technology Act 


129/202







6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


2000h-2000h-6  Title IX 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


36.303  Auxiliary aids and services 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.1-100.13  Nondiscrimination in federal programs, effectuating Title VI 


104.1-104.39  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


106.1-106.61  Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX, especially: 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance: Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students Against 


Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING PUBLICATIONS 


California Law Prohibits Workplace Discrimination and Harassment 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Transgender Students, May 2016 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter: Electronic Book Readers, June 29, 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 


Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999 


Nondiscrimination in Employment Practices in Education, August 1991 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


2010 ADA Standards for Accessible Design, September 2010 


Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 


WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 


Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


130/202







Pacific ADA Center: http://www.adapacific.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Americans with Disabilities Act: 


http://www.ada.gov 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission: http://www.eeoc.gov 


World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative: http://www.w3.org/wai 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 26, 2014 Soquel, California 


revised:  March 8, 2017 


131/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Environmental Safety 
 


BP 3514  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its obligation to provide a safe and healthy environment at 


school facilities for students, staff, and community members. The Superintendent or designee 


shall regularly assess school facilities to identify environmental health risks and shall develop 


strategies to prevent and/or mitigate environmental hazards. He/she shall consider the proven 


effectiveness of various options, anticipated short-term and long-term costs and/or savings to the 


district, and the potential impact on staff and students, including the impact on student 


achievement and attendance. 


 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 


 


Such strategies shall focus on maximizing healthy indoor air quality; monitoring the quality of 


outdoor air and adjusting outdoor activities as necessary; reducing exposure to vehicle emissions; 


minimizing exposure to lead and mercury; reducing the risk of unsafe drinking water; inspecting 


and properly abating asbestos; appropriately storing, using, and disposing of potentially 


hazardous substances; using effective least toxic pest management practices; reducing the risk of 


foodborne illness; and addressing any other environmental hazards identified during facilities 


inspections. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 


(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


(cf. 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules) 


(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 


(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 


(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 


(cf. 5141.7 - Sun Safety) 


132/202







(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6163.2 - Animals at School) 


(cf. 7150 - Site Selection and Development) 


 


In developing strategies to promote healthy school environments, the Superintendent or designee 


may consult and collaborate with local environmental protection agencies, health agencies, water 


boards, and other community organizations. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide the district's maintenance and facilities staff, bus 


drivers, food services staff, teachers, and other staff as appropriate with professional 


development regarding their responsibilities in implementing strategies to improve and maintain 


environmentally safe and healthy schools. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board, staff, parents/guardians, students, and/or 


governmental agencies, as appropriate, if an environmental hazard is discovered at a school site.  


The notification shall provide information about the district's actions to remedy the hazard and 


may recommend health screening of staff and students. 


 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


17002  Definition of "good repair" 


17070.75  Facilities inspection 


17582  Deferred maintenance fund 


17590  Asbestos abatement fund 


17608-17614  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 


32080-32081  Carbon monoxide devices 


32240-32245  Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act 


48980.3  Notification of pesticides 


49410-49410.7  Asbestos materials containment or removal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


11401-12408  Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals 


13180-13188  Healthy Schools Act of 2000, least toxic pest management practices 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3543.2  Scope of representation; right to negotiate safety conditions 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


133/202







105400-105430  Indoor environmental quality 


113700-114437  California Retail Food Code, sanitation and safety requirements 


116277 Lead testing of potable water at schools and requirements to remedy 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


14010  Standards for school site selection 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


337-339  Hazardous substances list 


340-340.2  Occupational safety and health, rights of employees 


1528-1537  Construction safety orders; exposure to hazards 


5139-5223  Control of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 


2025  Retrofitting of diesel school buses 


2480  Vehicle idling 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


35001-36100  Lead abatement services 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


64670-64679  Lead and copper in drinking water 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 


915.1-915.7 California Building Standards Code; carbon monoxide devices 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7 


136-136y  Use of pesticides 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15 


2601-2629  Control of toxic substances 


2641-2656   Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Food safety and inspections 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


141.1-141.723  Drinking water standards 


745.61-745.339  Lead-based paint standards 


763.80-763.99  Asbestos-containing materials in schools 


763.120-763.123  Asbestos worker protections 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Indoor Air Quality:  Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, 


Policy Brief, July 2008 


Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008 


Food Safety Requirements, Fact Sheet, October 2007 


Sun Safety in Schools, Policy Brief, July 2006 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


School Site Selection and Approval Guide, 2000 


Indoor Air Quality, A Guide for Educators, 1995 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 


Report to the Legislature:  Lead Hazards in California's Public Elementary Schools and Child 


Care Facilities, April 1998 


CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:  AIR RESOURCES BOARD 


134/202







PUBLICATIONS 


Facts about Truck and Bus Regulation School Bus Provisions, rev. March 22, 2011 


CALIFORNIA STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD PUBLICATIONS 


Frequently Asked Questions about Lead Testing of Drinking Water in California Schools; 


Updated for Assembly Bill 746/Health and Safety Code 116277, December 15, 2017 


DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT PUBLICATIONS 


K-12 Occupancy Classification and Load Factors, IR A-26, rev. April 18, 2012 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY PUBLICATIONS 


A Citizen's Guide to Radon:  The Guide to Protecting Yourself and Your Family from Radon, 


2016 


Healthy School Environments Assessment Tool, rev. 2015 


Indoor Air Quality Tools for Schools, rev. 2009 


Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings, September 2008 


The ABCs of Asbestos in Schools, rev. August 2003 


How to Manage Asbestos in School Buildings:  AHERA Designated Person's Self-Study Guide, 


1996 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


AirNow:  http://www.airnow.gov 


American Association of School Administrators:  http://www.aasa.org 


California Air Resources Board:  http://www.arb.ca.gov 


California Building Standards:  http://www.bsc.ca.gov/codes.aspx 


California Department of Education, Health and Safety:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa/hs 


California Department of Pesticide Regulation:  http://www.cdpr.ca.gov 


California Department of Public Health:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov 


California State Water Resources Control Board:  http://www.waterboards.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Consumer Product Safety Commission:  http://www.cpsc.gov 


National Center for Environmental Health:  http://www.cdc.gov/nceh 


Occupational Safety and Health Administration:  http://www.osha.gov 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov 


 


 


 


135/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Hazardous Substances 
 


BP 3514.1  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students and 


employees from exposure to any potentially hazardous substances used in the district's 


educational program and in the maintenance and operation of district facilities and equipment. 


 


(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 


(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


 


Insofar as reasonably possible, the Superintendent or designee shall minimize the quantities of 


hazardous substances stored and used on school property. When hazardous substances must be 


used, the Superintendent or designee shall give preference to materials that cause the least risk to 


people and the environment. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all potentially hazardous substances on district 


properties are inventoried, used, stored, and regularly disposed of in a safe and legal manner. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a written hazard 


communication program in accordance with 8 CCR 5194 and shall ensure that employees, 


students, and others as necessary are fully informed about the properties and potential hazards of 


substances to which they may be exposed. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop specific measures to ensure the safety of students 


and staff in school laboratories where hazardous chemicals are used. Such measures shall include 


the development and implementation of a chemical hygiene plan in accordance with 8 CCR 5191 


and instruction to students about proper handling of hazardous substances. 


 


(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


 


136/202







The Superintendent or designee shall not order or purchase for use in grades K-6 any arts and 


crafts materials containing a substance determined by the California Office of Environmental 


Health Hazard Assessment to be toxic. The Superintendent or designee shall not purchase any 


such toxic material for use in grades 7-12 unless it includes a warning label as specified in 


Education Code 32065 that identifies any toxic ingredients, warns of potential adverse health 


effects, and describes procedures for safe use and storage.  (Education Code 32064) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32060-32066  Toxic art supplies in schools 


49340-49341  Hazardous substances education 


49401.5  Legislative intent; consultation services 


49411  Chemical listing; compounds used in school programs; determination of shelf life; 


disposal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


12981  Regulations re pesticides and worker safety 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


25163  Transportation of hazardous wastes; registration; exemptions; inspection 


25500-25520  Hazardous materials release response plans; inventory 


108100-108515 California Hazardous Substances Act 


LABOR CODE 


6360-6363  Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act 


6380-6386  List of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


339  List of hazardous substances 


3203  Illness and injury prevention program 


3204  Records of employee exposure to toxic or harmful substances 


5139-5230  Control of hazardous substances, especially 


5154.1-5154.2 Ventilation 


5161  Definitions 


5162  Emergency eyewash and shower equipment 


5163  Control of spills 


5164  Storage of hazardous substances 


5191  Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hygiene plan 


5194  Hazard communication 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


67450.40-67450.49  School hazardous waste collection, consolidation, and accumulation 


facilities 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH HAZARD ASSESSMENT 


PUBLICATIONS 


137/202







Art and Craft Materials in Schools:  Guidelines for Purchasing and Safe Use, September 17, 


2016 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://cde.ca.gov 


California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment:  http://www.oehha.ca.gov 


Department of Industrial Relations, Cal/OSHA:  http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 


 


 


 


138/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Hazardous Substances 
 


BP 3514.1  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students and 


employees from exposure to potentially hazardous substances that may be used in the district's 


educational program and in the maintenance and operation of district facilities and equipment. 


 


(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 


(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4219.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 


(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 


(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 


(cf. 5142 - Safety) 


(cf. 6161.3 - Toxic Art Supplies) 


 


Insofar as reasonably possible, the Superintendent or designee shall minimize the quantities of 


hazardous substances stored and used on school property.  When hazardous substances must be 


used, the Superintendent or designee shall give preference to materials that cause the least risk to 


people and the environment. 


 


(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 


(cf. 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all potentially hazardous substances on district 


properties are inventoried, used, stored, and regularly disposed of in a safe and legal manner. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop, implement, and maintain a written hazard 


communication program in accordance with 8 CCR 5194 and shall ensure that employees, 


students, and others as necessary are fully informed about the properties and potential hazards of 


substances to which they may be exposed. 


 


(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop specific measures to ensure the safety of students 


and staff in school laboratories where hazardous chemicals are used. Such measures shall include 


the development and implementation of a chemical hygiene plan in accordance with 8 CCR 5191 


and instruction to students about proper handling of hazardous substances. 


 


(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


 


139/202







 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


49340-49341  Hazardous substances education 


49401.5  Legislative intent; consultation services 


49411  Chemical listing; compounds used in school programs; determination of shelf life; 


disposal 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 


12981  Regulations re pesticides and worker safety 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


25163  Transportation of hazardous wastes; registration; exemptions; inspection 


25500-25520  Hazardous materials release response plans; inventory 


LABOR CODE 


6360-6363  Hazardous Substances Information and Training Act 


6380-6386  List of hazardous substances 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 


339  List of hazardous substances 


3203  Illness and injury prevention program 


3204  Records of employee exposure to toxic or harmful substances 


5139-5230  Control of hazardous substances, especially 


5154.1-5154.2 Ventilation 


5161  Definitions 


5162  Emergency eyewash and shower equipment 


5163  Control of spills 


5164  Storage of hazardous substances 


5191  Occupational exposure to hazardous chemicals in laboratories; chemical hygiene plan 


5194  Hazard communication 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 22 


67450.40-67450.49  School hazardous waste collection, consolidation, and accumulation 


facilities 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Science Safety Handbook for California Public Schools, 2012 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://cde.ca.gov 


Department of Industrial Relations, Cal/OSHA: http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  June 19, 2013 Soquel, California 


140/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan 
 


BP 3516  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond 


quickly and responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. The district shall take 


all reasonable steps to prevent and/or mitigate the impact of a disaster on district students, staff, 


and schools. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which 


contains routine and emergency disaster procedures, including, but not limited to, earthquake 


emergency procedures, and adaptations for individuals with disabilities in accordance with the 


Americans with Disabilities Act. Such procedures shall be incorporated into the comprehensive 


school safety plan.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


 


In developing the disaster preparedness plan, the Superintendent or designee shall involve 


district staff at all levels, including administrators, facilities managers, transportation managers, 


food services personnel, school psychologists, counselors, school nurses, teachers, classified 


employees. As appropriate, he/she shall also collaborate with law enforcement, fire safety 


officials, emergency medical services, health and mental health professionals, parents/guardians, 


and students. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 3513.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


 


The plan shall comply with state-approved Standardized Emergency Management System 


(SEMS) guidelines established for multiple-jurisdiction or multiple-agency operations and with 


the National Incident Management System. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to employees regarding their 


responsibilities, including periodic drills and exercises to test and refine staff's responsiveness in 


the event of an emergency. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


141/202







(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, 


including the American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other 


emergencies affecting the public health and welfare. The Board shall cooperate with such 


agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services the district may deem necessary to 


meet the community's needs.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


 


District employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service 


activities assigned to them.  (Government Code 3100) 


 


(cf. 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation) 


(cf. 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32001  Fire alarms and drills 


32040  Duty to equip school with first aid kit 


32280-32289  School safety plans 


32290  Safety devices 


39834 Operating overloaded bus 


46390-46392  Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster 


49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.5  Release from liability for disaster service workers and shelters 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3100-3109  Public employees as disaster service workers; oath or affirmation 


8607 Standardized emergency management system 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 20, Section 3  Oath or affirmation 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


550  Fire drills 


560  Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19 


2400-2450  Standardized emergency management system 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Crisis Response Box, 2000 


CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES PUBLICATIONS 


142/202







Active Shooter Awareness Guidance, February 2018 


State of California Emergency Plan, 2017 


School Emergency Response:  Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998 


FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLICATIONS 


National Incident Management System, 3rd ed., October 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Guide for Developing High-Quality School Emergency Operations Plans, 2013 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp 


California Governor's Office of Emergency Services:  http://www.caloes.ca.gov 


California Seismic Safety Commission:  http://www.seismic.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Federal Emergency Management Agency:  http://www.fema.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning:  


http://www2.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/crisisplanning.html 


U.S. Department of Homeland Security:  http://www.dhs.gov 


 


 


 


143/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan 
 


BP 3516  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that all district staff and students must be prepared to respond 


quickly and responsibly to emergencies, disasters, and threats of disaster. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a disaster preparedness plan which 


details provisions for handling emergencies and disasters and which shall be included in the 


district's comprehensive school safety plan.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall also develop and maintain emergency plans for each school 


site. 


 


In developing the district and school emergency plans, the Superintendent or designee shall 


collaborate with city and county emergency responders, including local public health 


administrators. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall use state-approved Standardized Emergency Management 


System guidelines and the National Incident Command System when updating district and site-


level emergency and disaster preparedness plans. 


 


The Board shall grant the use of school buildings, grounds, and equipment to public agencies, 


including the American Red Cross, for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other 


emergencies affecting the public health and welfare.  The Board shall cooperate with such 


agencies in furnishing and maintaining whatever services they deem necessary to meet the 


community's needs.  (Education Code 32282) 


 


(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 


 


School employees are considered disaster service workers and are subject to disaster service 


activities assigned to them. (Government Code 3100) 


 


(cf. 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation) 


(cf. 4119.3/4219.3/4319.3 - Duties of Personnel) 


 


 


 


144/202







Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32001  Fire alarms and drills 


32040  Duty to equip school with first aid kit 


32280-32289  School safety plans 


32290  Safety devices 


39834 Operating overloaded bus 


46390-46392  Emergency average daily attendance in case of disaster 


49505 Natural disaster; meals for homeless students; reimbursement 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3100  Public employees as disaster service workers 


8607 Standardized emergency management system 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


550  Fire drills 


560  Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 19 


2400-2450  Standardized emergency management system 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Avian Influenza, Governance and Policy Services Fact Sheet, April 2006 


911!  A Manual for Schools and the Media During a Campus Crisis, 2001 


CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 


Pandemic Influenza Planning Checklist, 2006 


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 


Pandemic Flu School Action Kit, June 2006 


GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 


School Emergency Response:  Using SEMS at Districts and Sites, June 1998 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Practical Information on Crisis Planning: A Guide for Schools and Communities, May 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org 


California Department of Education, Crisis Preparedness:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/cp 


California Emergency Management Agency:  http://www.calema.ca.gov 


California Seismic Safety Commission:  http://www.seismic.ca.gov 


Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  http://www.cdc.gov 


Contra Costa County Office of Education, Pandemic influenza resources: 


http://www.cccoe.k12.ca.us/about/flu/resources_flu_action_kit 


Federal Emergency Management Agency: http://www.fema.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Emergency Planning: 


http://www.ed.gov/admins/lead/safety/emergencyplan 


U.S. Department of Homeland Security: http://www.dhs.gov 


 


145/202







 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


146/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Employee Security 
 


BP 4158 4258, 4358 


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe and orderly work environment for all employees.  


As part of the district's comprehensive safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall develop 


strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations and for 


providing necessary assistance and support when emergency situations occur. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


 


Any employee against whom violence or any threat of violence has been directed in the 


workplace shall notify the Superintendent or designee immediately. As appropriate, the 


Superintendent or designee shall initiate legal and security measures to protect the employee and 


others in the workplace. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may pursue legal action on behalf of an employee against a 


student or his/her parent/guardian to recover damages to the employee or his/her property caused 


by the student's willful misconduct that occurred on district property, at a school or district 


activity, or in retaliation for lawful acts of the employee in the performance of his/her duties.  


(Education Code 48904, 48905) 


 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 4156.3/4256.3/4356.3 - Employee Property Reimbursement) 


(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees receive training in crisis prevention 


and intervention techniques in order to protect themselves and students. Staff development may 


include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques, procedures for 


responding to an active shooter situation, and crisis resolution. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee also shall inform teachers, in accordance with law, of crimes and 


offenses committed by students who may pose a danger in the classroom.  (Education Code 


48201, 49079; Welfare and Institutions Code 827) 


147/202







 


The Superintendent or designee may make available at appropriate locations, including, but not 


limited to, district and school offices, gyms, and classrooms, communication devices that would 


enable two-way communication with law enforcement and others when emergencies occur. 


 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


 


Use of Pepper Spray 


 


Employees shall not carry or possess pepper spray on school property or at school activities. 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


Reporting of Injurious Objects 


 


The Board requires employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any person 


is in possession of a weapon or unauthorized injurious object on school grounds or at a school-


related or school-sponsored activity.  The employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the 


potential danger involved and shall do one of the following: 


 


1. Immediately notify the principal or designee, who shall take appropriate action 


 


2. In the event of inherent danger, immediately call 911 and the principal 


 


(cf. 3515.7 - Firearms on School Grounds) 


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32210-32212  Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings 


32225-32226  Communication devices 


35208  Liability insurance 


35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property 


44014  Report of assault by pupil against school employee 


44807  Duty concerning conduct of students 


48201  Transfer of student records 


48900-48926  Suspension or expulsion 


49079  Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts re:  grounds suspension or 


expulsion 


49330-49335  Injurious objects 


CIVIL CODE 


51.7  Freedom from violence or intimidation 


148/202







CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


527.8  Workplace violence safety 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


995-996.4  Defense of public employees 


3543.2  Scope of representation 


PENAL CODE 


71  Threatening public officers and employees and school officials 


240-246.3  Assault and battery, especially: 


241.3  Assault against school bus drivers 


241.6  Assault on school employee including board member 


243.3  Battery against school bus drivers 


243.6  Battery against school employee including board member 


245.5  Assault with deadly weapon against school employee including board member 


290  Registration of sex offenders 


601  Trespass by person making credible threat 


626-626.11  School crimes 


646.9  Stalking 


22810  Purchase, possession, and use of tear gas 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


827  Juvenile court proceedings; reports; confidentiality 


828.1  District police or security department, disclosure of  juvenile records 


COURT DECISIONS 


City of San Jose v. William Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal. App. 4th 526 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


 


 


 


 (7/01  3/11)  5/18 


149/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Employee Security 
 


BP 4158  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe, orderly working environment for all employees.  


As part of the district's comprehensive school safety plan, the Superintendent or designee shall 


develop strategies for protecting employees from potentially dangerous persons and situations 


and for assisting them in the event of an emergency situation. 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515 - Campus Security) 


(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are informed, in accordance with 


law, regarding crimes and offenses by students who may pose a danger in the classroom. 


 


When violence is directed against an employee by any individual and the employee so notifies 


the Superintendent or designee, the Superintendent or designee shall take steps to ensure that 


appropriate legal measures are instituted.  When the employee notifies the Superintendent or 


designee of a threat of bodily harm, the district shall take appropriate measures to enable the 


employee to request assistance if a threat occurs on school grounds. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees are trained in crisis prevention and 


intervention techniques in order to protect themselves and students.  Staff development may 


include training in classroom management, effective communication techniques and crisis 


resolution. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Board recognizes that access to two-way communications devices allows employees to call 


for assistance from their supervisor or law enforcement in the event of a threat of violence or 


medical emergency.  The district shall provide such communications devices in classrooms to 


the extent possible. 


 


(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies) 


 


Employees may possess pepper spray that meets the requirements of Penal Code 1203.7 on 


school property at school activities for their own safety. Any employee who is negligent or 


careless in the possession or handling of pepper spray shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary 


150/202







measures. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


Reporting of Injurious Objects 


 


The Board requires school employees to take immediate action upon being made aware that any 


person is in possession of an injurious object on school grounds or at a school-related or school-


sponsored activity. The employee shall use his/her own judgment as to the dangerousness of the 


situation and, based upon this analysis, shall do one of the following: 


 


1. Confiscate the object and deliver it to the principal immediately 


 


2. Immediately notify the principal, who shall take appropriate action 


 


3. Immediately notify the local law enforcement agency and the principal 


 


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


(cf. 5144. - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


When informing the principal about the possession or seizure of a weapon or dangerous device, 


the employee shall report the name(s) of persons involved, witnesses, location, and the 


circumstances of any seizure. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


32210-32212  Willful disturbance, public schools or meetings 


32225-32226  Communication devices 


35204  Contract with attorney in private practice or use of administrative advisor 


35205  Contract for legal services 


35208  Liability insurance 


35213  Reimbursement for loss, destruction or damage of school property 


44014  Report of assault by pupil against school employee 


44807  Duty concerning conduct of students 


48201  Transfer of student records 


48900-48926  Suspension or expulsion  Grounds for suspension or expulsion 


49079  Notification to teacher; student who has engaged in acts constituting grounds for 


suspension or expulsion 


49330-49335 Injurious objects 


CIVIL CODE 


51.7  Freedom from violence or intimidation 


151/202







CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


527.8  Workplace violence safety act 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


995-996.4  Defense of public employees 


3543.2  Scope of representation 


PENAL CODE 


71  Threatening public officers and employees and school officials 


240  Definition of assault 


241.2  Assault on school or park property against any person 


241.3  Assault against school bus drivers 


241.6  Assault on school employee includes board member 


242  Definition of battery 


243  Battery; definition of "injury" and "serious bodily injury" 


243.2  Battery on school or park property against any person 


243.3  Battery against school bus drivers 


243.6  Battery against school employee includes board member 


245.5  Assault with deadly weapon; school employee includes board member 


290  Registration of sex offenders 


601  Trespass by person making credible threat 


626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 


626.10  Exceptions to bringing weapons on school grounds 


646.9  Stalking 


12403.7  Weapons approved for self defense 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


827  Juvenile court proceedings; reports; confidentiality 


828.1  District police or security department, disclosure of  juvenile records 


 


Management Resources: 


CDE CORRESPONDENCE 


0401.01  Protecting Student Identification in Reporting Injurious Objects 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools and Violence Prevention Office:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  May 25, 2011 Soquel, California 


152/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Admission 
 


BP 5111  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 


children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 


seeking admission to a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall 


assist them with enrollment procedures. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall announce and publicize the timeline and process for 


registration of students at district schools. Applications for intradistrict or interdistrict enrollment 


shall be subject to the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and administrative 


regulations. 


 


(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 


 


All appropriate staff shall receive training on district admission policies and procedures, 


including information regarding the types of documentation that can and cannot be requested. 


 


The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and 


enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not discriminate 


against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating 


to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any 


manner that would harm the child or his/her family.  (Education Code 49452.9) 


 


Verification of Admission Eligibility 


 


Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 


child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the 


accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative 


regulation. 


 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


153/202







(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 


The district shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's social security number 


or the last four digits of the social security number or the citizenship or immigration status of the 


student or his/her family members.  (Education Code 234.7, 49076.7) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


However, such information may be collected when required by state or federal law or to comply 


with requirements for special state or federal programs. In any such situation, the information 


shall be collected separately from the school enrollment process and the Superintendent or 


designee shall explain the limited purpose for which the information is collected. Enrollment in a 


district school shall not be denied on the basis of any such information of the student or his/her 


parents/guardians obtained by the district, or the student's or parent/guardian's refusal to provide 


such information to the district. 


 


School registration information shall list all possible means of documenting a child's age for 


grades K-1 as authorized by Education Code 48002 or otherwise prescribed by the Board. Any 


alternative document allowed by the district shall be one that all persons can obtain regardless of 


immigration status, citizenship status, or national origin and shall not reveal information related 


to citizenship or immigrant status. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall immediately enroll a homeless student, foster youth, 


student who has had contact with the juvenile justice system, or a child of a military family 


regardless of outstanding fees or fines owed to the student's last school, lack of clothing normally 


required by the school, such as school uniforms, or his/her inability to produce previous 


academic, medical, or other records normally required for enrollment.  (Education Code 


48645.5, 48850, 48852.7, 48853.5, 49701; 42 USC 11432) 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 


kindergarten 


46600  Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


154/202







48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48645.5  Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 


48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49076.7  Student records; data privacy; social security numbers 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


49452.9  Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 


49700-49703 Education of children of military families 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200  Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552a Note  Refusal to disclose social security number 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014 


Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School:  Questions and Answers for 


States, School Districts and Parents, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Health Care Coverage and Enrollment Assistance:  


http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hc 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


155/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Admission 
 


BP 5111  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 


children in school. The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 


entering a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall assist them 


with enrollment procedures. 


 


Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 


child's age, residency, immunization, and other applicable eligibility criteria specified in law, the 


accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy or administrative 


regulation. 


 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 


(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 


(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the enrollment of a homeless or foster child or a 


child of a military family is not delayed because of outstanding fees or fines owed to the child's 


last school or for his/her inability to produce previous academic, medical, or other records 


normally required for enrollment. 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


 


In addition, no child shall be denied enrollment in a district school solely on the basis of his/her 


arrest, adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, 


detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other contact with the 


juvenile justice system.  (Education Code 48645.5) 


 


(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's 


citizenship or immigration status, and shall not deny a student enrollment in a district school on 


the basis of the citizenship or immigration status of the student or his/her parents/guardians. Any 


information obtained about a student's or parent/guardian's citizenship or immigration status shall 


156/202







not be shared without parent/guardian consent or a lawful judicial order, in accordance with laws 


pertaining to the confidentiality of student records. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


A student shall not be denied enrollment based on the parent/guardian's refusal to provide the 


student's or parent/guardian's social security number. During the enrollment process, students 


and parents/guardians shall be informed that disclosure of their social security number is 


voluntary.  (5 USC 552a Note) 


 


When enrolling in any district school, including a school in their attendance area, children whose 


parents/guardians reside within district boundaries shall be subject to the timelines established by 


the Board for open enrollment. Children whose parents/guardians do not reside within the district 


or who are not otherwise eligible for enrollment in the district may apply for interdistrict 


attendance in accordance with the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and 


administrative regulations. 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 


 


The district's enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and 


enrollment assistance available to families within the district. The district shall not discriminate 


against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating 


to a child's health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any 


manner that would harm the child or his/her family.  (Education Code 49452.9) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


46300  Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional 


kindergarten 


46600  Agreements for admission of students desiring interdistrict attendance 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 


48050-48053  Nonresidents 


48200  Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 


48645.5  Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 


49076  Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 


49408  Information of use in emergencies 


157/202







49452.9  Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 


49700-49704  Education of children of military families 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120325-120380  Education and child care facility immunization requirements 


121475-121520  Tuberculosis tests for students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


200  Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 


201  Admission to high school 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6000-6075  School attendance immunization requirements 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552a Note  Refusal to disclose social security number 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


158/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


District Residency 
 


BP 5111.1  


Students 
 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 


fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 


students' proof of residency. 


 


(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 


options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 


requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 


student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing students' residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 


shall not inquire into the citizenship or immigration status of students or their family members. 


 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 


establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


159/202







determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation. The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 


conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 


shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 


as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 


 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination.  (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 


the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 


he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 


 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 


 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


160/202







Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 


exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 


(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 


accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 


there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


35160.5  Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054  Nonresidents 


48200-48208  Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204  Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.4 Evidence of residency 


48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48645.5  Former juvenile court school students, enrollment 


48852.7  Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5  Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980  Notifications at beginning of term 


52317  Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552  Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210  Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1229c  Immigration and Nationality Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


161/202







11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


CALIFORNIA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School, May 8, 2014 


Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School:  Questions and Answers for 


States, School Districts and Parents, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program:  http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


  


162/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


District Residency 
 


BP 5111.1  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 


fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 


students' proof of residency. 


 


(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 


options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 


requirements for school attendance.  (Education Code 48980) 


 


(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 


(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 


student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 


statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 


permanent record.  (5 CCR 432) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


When establishing a student's residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 


shall not inquire into a student's citizenship or immigration status. 


 


A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 


establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 


parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 


 


Investigation of Residency 


 


When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 


provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 


determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 


initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 


supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 


163/202







residency.  (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 


investigation.  The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 


records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 


 


If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 


conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 


shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 


images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 


prohibited if done in open and public view.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 


as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation.  


(Education Code 48204.2) 


 


Appeal of Enrollment Denial 


 


If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 


district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 


provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination.  (Education 


Code 48204.2) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 


the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 


he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 


 


The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 


enrollment should be overruled.  (Education Code 48204.2) 


 


A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 


his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 


district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 


 


In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 


not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 


obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 


receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 


final. 


 


Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 


 


When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 


164/202







other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 


exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 


 


(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 


(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 


 


The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 


accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 


 


District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 


there are openings in the program or class.  (Education Code 52317) 


 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


35160.5  Intradistrict open enrollment 


35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance permits 


48050-48054  Nonresidents 


48200-48208  Compulsory education law, especially: 


48204  Residency requirements 


48204.1-48204.2 Evidence of residency 


48300-48316  Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act transfers 


48852.7  Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 


48853.5  Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 


48980  Notifications at beginning of term 


52317  Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 


FAMILY CODE 


6550-6552  Caregivers 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6205-6210  Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Retention of student records 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11431-11435  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


165/202







Immigration Status, February 2017 


Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 


EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 


Fact Sheet:  Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 


Dear Colleague Letter:  School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program:  http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 10, 2016  Soquel, California 


revised:  September 13, 2017 


166/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Student Records 
 


BP 5125  


Students 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student 


records as required by law. The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative 


regulations governing the identification, collection, retention, and security of student records. 


These regulations shall ensure the rights of authorized persons to have timely access to student 


records while maintaining the confidentiality of student records consistent with state and federal 


law. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of 


records with responsibility for student records at the district level. At each school, the principal 


or a certificated employee shall be designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that 


school. The custodian of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and 


administrative regulation regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431) 


 


All appropriate personnel shall receive training regarding district policies and procedures for 


gathering and handling sensitive student information. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The district shall not collect or solicit social security numbers or the last four digits of social 


security numbers of students or their parents/guardians, unless otherwise required to do so by 


state or federal law.  (Education Code 49076.7) 


 


No information or documents regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their 


family members shall be collected, except as required by state or federal law or as required to 


administer a state or federally supported educational program. The Superintendent or designee 


shall not disclose student records to a person, agency, or organization for immigration 


enforcement purposes without parental consent, a court order, or a judicial subpoena. If a district 


employee receives such a request, he/she shall immediately report the request to the 


Superintendent. The Superintendent shall report the request to the Board in a timely manner that 


167/202







ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information.  (Education 


Code 234.7) 


 


(cf. 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not compile a list, registry, or database based on students' 


national origin, ethnicity, or religious belief, practice, or affiliation, nor shall he/she disclose 


student information to federal government authorities for the purpose of compiling such a list, 


registry, or database for purposes of immigration enforcement.  Such information may only be 


compiled or exchanged with other local, state, or federal agencies if the information is 


aggregated and is not personally identifiable.  (Government Code 8310.3) 


 


Student Records from Social Media 


 


The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of 


any district student, provided that the district first notifies students and parents/guardians about 


the proposed program, offers an opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board 


meeting, and gathers only information that directly pertains to school safety or student safety.  


(Education Code 49073.6) 


 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 


 


Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records 


 


The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital 


storage, management, and retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider 


of digital software to access, store, and use student records, provided that the contract meets the 


requirements of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable state and federal laws. 


 


(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


17604  Contracts 


48201  Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled 


48853.5  Foster youth; placement, immunizations 


48902  Notification of law enforcement of specified violations 


48904-48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


168/202







48980  Parental notifications 


48985  Notices in parent/guardian's primary language 


49060-49079  Student records 


49091.14  Parental review of curriculum 


51747  Independent study 


56041.5  Rights of students with disabilities 


56050  Surrogate parents 


56055  Foster parents 


69432.9  Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average 


BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 


22580-22582  Digital privacy 


22584-22585  Student Online Personal Information Protection Act 


22586-22587  Early Learning Personal Information Protection Act 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985.3  Subpoena duces tecum 


FAMILY CODE 


3025  Access to records by noncustodial parents 


6552  Caregiver's authorization affidavit 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6252-6260  Inspection of public records 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120440  Immunizations; disclosure of information 


PENAL CODE 


245  Assault with deadly weapon 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


681  Truancy petitions 


701  Juvenile court law 


16010  Health and education records of a minor 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual student records 


16020-16027  Destruction of records of school districts 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1232h  Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26 


152  Definition of dependent child 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11434a  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16 


Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


300.501  Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability 


 


 


 


169/202







Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 


December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855 


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Data in the Cloud:  A Legal and Policy Guide for School Boards on Student Data Privacy in the 


Cloud Computing Era, April 2014 


U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


IDEA and FERPA Confidentiality Provisions, 2014 


Joint Guidance on the Application of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 


and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to Student Health 


Records, 2008 


Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety:  A Guide to the Family Educational Rights and 


Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary Schools, October 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance, 


http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco 


 


 


 


170/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Student Records 
 


BP 5125  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student 


records as required by law.   The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's 


administrative regulation and school site procedures for maintaining the confidentiality of 


student records are consistent with state and federal law. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish regulations governing the identification, 


description, and security of student records, as well as timely access for authorized persons.  


These regulations shall ensure parental rights to review, inspect, and copy student records and 


shall protect the student and his/her family from invasion of privacy. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 


(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall designate a certificated employee to serve as custodian of 


records with responsibility for student records at the district level.  At each school, the principal 


or a certificated designee shall act as custodian of records for students enrolled at that school.  


The custodian of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and administrative 


regulation regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


48201  Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled 


48904-48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


49060-49079  Student records 


49091.14  Parental review of curriculum 


51747  Independent study programs 


56050  Surrogate parents 


56055  Foster parents 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985.3  Subpoena duces tecum 


FAMILY CODE 


171/202







3025  Access to records by noncustodial parents 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6252-6260  Inspection of public records 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


120440  Immunizations; disclosure of information 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


681  Truancy petitions 


16010  Health and education records of a minor 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


430-438  Individual student records 


16020-16027  Destruction of records of school districts 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy 


300.501  Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability 


 


Management Resources: 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, 


December 9, 2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855 


U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Joint Guidance on the Application of FERPA and HIPAA to Student Health Records, November 


2008 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office, 


http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/index.html 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


172/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Bullying 
 


BP 5131.2  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 


attendance and desires to provide a safe school environment that protects students from physical 


and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall 


not tolerate bullying of any student. 


 


No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually 


harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence 


against any student or school personnel. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


Cyberbullying includes the electronic creation or transmission of harassing communications, 


direct threats, or other harmful texts, sounds, or images as defined in Education Code 48900.  


Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that 


person's identity in order to damage that person's reputation. 


 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 


 


Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key 


stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the 


comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district 


and school plans. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, 


social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the 


development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the 


173/202







community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


Bullying Prevention 


 


To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing 


clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a positive, collaborative 


school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate 


means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 


incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying. 


 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other 


educational settings, that promotes social-emotional learning, effective communication and 


conflict resolution skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual 


differences, self-esteem development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 


 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


Such instruction shall also educate students about the negative impact of bullying, 


discrimination, intimidation, and harassment based on actual or perceived immigration status, 


religious beliefs and customs, or any other individual bias or prejudice. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to teachers and other school staff to raise 


their awareness about the legal obligation of the district and its employees to prevent 


discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying of district students.  Such training shall 


be designed to provide staff with the skills to: 


 


1. Discuss the diversity of the student body and school community, including their varying 


immigration experiences 


 


2. Discuss bullying prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize the 


behavior and characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims 


 


3. Identify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior 


 


4. Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed 


 


5. Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances of 


criminal behavior 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


174/202







(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may 


increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, 


playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias. 


 


Intervention 


 


Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another 


student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for 


students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 


 


School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when 


it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 


 


When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or 


designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law 


enforcement. 


 


The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or 


other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social 


worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service 


personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program 


as appropriate.  (Education Code 48900.9) 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Reporting and Filing of Complaints 


 


Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected 


to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a 


compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of 


receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a 


uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of 


bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the 


principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 


 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity 


shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute 


cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be 


investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another 


student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking site or service to 


suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed. 


175/202







 


The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to describe 


the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other evidence 


of bullying. 


 


Investigation and Resolution of Complaints 


 


Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved 


in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3. 


 


If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, 


the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to 


resolve the complaint. 


 


Discipline 


 


Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include 


counseling, behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as 


defined in Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with 


district policies and regulations. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 


 


Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  Comprehensive safety plan 


32283.5  Bullying; online training 


35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 


35291-35291.5  Rules 


48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 


48985  Translation of notices 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


176/202







PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 


647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 


653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 


254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062 


J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 


Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Final Guidance:  AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, 


Programs, Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Addressing the Conditions of Children:  Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


Building Healthy Communities:  A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community 


Engagement, 2009 


Cyberbullying:  Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California's Social and Emotional Learning:  Guiding Principles, 2018 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools:  Kindergarten Through 


Grade Twelve, 2008 


Bullying at School, 2003 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Guidance to Schools:  Bullying of Students with Disabilities, October 2014 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance on Schools' Obligations to Protect Students from Student-on-


Student Harassment on the Basis of Sex; Race, Color and National Origin; and Disability, 


October 26, 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


177/202







WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


Center on Great Teachers and Leaders:  http://gtlcenter.org 


Collaborative for Academic Social and Emotional Learning:  http://casel.org 


Common Sense Media:  http://www.commonsensemedia.org 


National School Safety Center:  http://www.schoolsafety.us 


Partnership for Children and Youth:  http://www.partnerforchildren.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


  


178/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Bullying 
 


BP 5131.2  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 


attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical 


and emotional harm. District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall 


not tolerate bullying of any student. 


 


No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually 


harass, threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence 


against any student or school personnel. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


Cyberbullying includes the creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, 


or other harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies 


using a telephone, computer, or any wireless communication device.  Cyberbullying also 


includes breaking into another person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in 


order to damage that person's reputation. 


 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key 


stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the 


comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district 


and school plans. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, 


social services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the 


179/202







development and implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the 


community and to provide services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


 


Bullying Prevention 


 


To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing 


clear rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a positive, collaborative 


school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other appropriate 


means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 


incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying. 


 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other 


educational settings, that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social 


skills, character/values education, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem 


development, assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 


 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 


 


Staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning 


signs of harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective response. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may 


increase supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, 


playgrounds, hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias. 


 


Intervention 


 


Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another 


student is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for 


students to report threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 


 


School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when 


it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 


 


When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or 


designee shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law 


180/202







enforcement. 


 


The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or 


other student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social 


worker, child welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service 


personnel for case management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program 


as appropriate. (Education Code 48900.9) 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Reporting and Filing of Complaints 


 


Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected 


to bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a 


compliance officer, or any other available school employee. Within one business day of 


receiving such a report, a staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a 


uniform complaint is filed. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of 


bullying involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the 


principal or a district compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 


 


Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district 


compliance officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity 


shall be encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute 


cyberbullying and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be 


investigated. When a student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another 


student, the Superintendent or designee may file a request with the networking site or service to 


suspend the privileges of the student and to have the material removed. 


 


When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform 


the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with 


AR 1312.3. The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to 


describe the incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other 


evidence of bullying. 


 


Investigation and Resolution of Complaints 


 


Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved 


in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3. 


 


If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, 


the principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to 


resolve the complaint. 


181/202







 


Discipline 


 


Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include 


counseling, behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as 


defined in Education Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with 


district policies and regulations. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 


 


Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  Comprehensive safety plan 


32283.5  Bullying; online training 


35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 


35291-35291.5  Rules 


48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 


48985  Translation of notices 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 


647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 


653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 


254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


182/202







106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified 


School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 


Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, 


Programs, Activities & Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014Addressing the Conditions of Children: 


Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012 


Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community 


Engagement, 2009 


Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade 


Twelve, 2008 


Bullying at School, 2003 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 


Common Sense Media: http://www.commonsensemedia.org 


National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 


ON[the]LINE, digital citizenship resources:  http://www.onthelineca.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  November 12, 2014  Soquel, California 


revised:   October 14, 2015 


183/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 


BP 5145.3  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 


access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support 


programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, 


unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, 


targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, ethnicity, 


age, religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual 


orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or association 


with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring 


within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or 


school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at 


school. 


 


Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may 


result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed 


above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through 


prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to 


participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, 


threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or 


unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a 


student's educational opportunities. 


 


Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the 


categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs 


or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services. 


 


184/202







The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or 


participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a 


complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging 


unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same 


manner as a discrimination complaint. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by 


publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 


parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope 


and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the 


school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The 


Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's 


nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 


identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. 


He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal 


filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 


harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the 


discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students. 


 


Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 


intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative 


regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include 


suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 


48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary 


action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


185/202







Record-Keeping 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful 


discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the 


district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48907  Student exercise of free expression 


48950  Freedom of speech 


48985  Translation of notices 


49020-49023  Athletic programs 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51501  Prohibited means of instruction 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Student record 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


186/202







99.31  Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 


COURT DECISIONS 


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Updated Legal Guidance:  Protecting Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students 


Against Sex Discrimination, July 2016 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 


Public Schools and Sexual Orientation:  A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 


Ground, 2006 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, Fact Sheet, August 2010 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Safe Schools Coalition:  http://www.casafeschools.org 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


 


 


 


  


187/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
 


BP 5145.3  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that allows all students equal 


access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and other educational support 


programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district school or school activity, 


unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying, 


targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, 


ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital 


or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, 


or gender expression or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or 


perceived characteristics. 


 


This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring 


within a district school, and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-related or 


school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile environment at 


school. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, may 


result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the categories listed 


above. Unlawful discrimination also includes the creation of a hostile environment through 


prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it affects a student's ability to 


participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity; creates an intimidating, 


threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect of substantially or 


unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise adversely affects a 


student's educational opportunities. 


 


Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the 


categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs 


or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services. 


 


The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or 


188/202







participates in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or participates in the filing of a 


complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report alleging 


unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and resolved in the same 


manner as a discrimination complaint. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by 


publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students, 


parents/guardians, and employees. He/she shall provide training and information on the scope 


and use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the 


school community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The 


Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's 


nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any 


identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. 


He/she shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review. 


 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities) 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 


(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal 


filing requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory 


harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the 


discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students. 


 


Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, 


intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative 


regulation shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include 


suspension or expulsion when the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 


48900.4. Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary 


action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 


 


Record-Keeping 


189/202







 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful 


discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the 


district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48907  Student exercise of free expression 


48950  Freedom of speech 


48985  Translation of notices 


49020-49023  Athletic programs 


51500  Prohibited instruction or activity 


51501  Prohibited means of instruction 


60044  Prohibited instructional materials 


CIVIL CODE 


1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


432  Student record 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.31  Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


190/202







106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


COURT DECISIONS 


Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567 


Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-


Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief, February 2014 


Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS 


Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common 


Ground, 2006 


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Transgender Students, May 2016 


Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org 


First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  November 12, 2014 Soquel, California 


revised:  March 8, 2017 


191/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Hate-Motivated Behavior 
 


BP 5145.9  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe learning environment that protects 


students from discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying, and other behavior motivated 


by a person's hostility towards another person's real or perceived ethnicity, national origin, 


immigrant status, sex, gender, sexual orientation, religious belief, age, disability, or any other 


physical or cultural characteristic. The Superintendent or designee shall design strategies to 


promote harmonious relationships among students, prevent incidents of hate-motivated behavior 


to the extent possible, and address such incidents if they occur. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 5131- Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with regional programs and community 


organizations to promote safe environments for youth. Such collaborative efforts shall focus on 


ensuring an efficient use of district and community resources, developing effective prevention 


strategies and response plans, providing assistance to students affected by hate-motivated 


behavior, and/or educating students who have perpetrated hate-motivated acts. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


 


The district shall provide students with age-appropriate instruction that includes the development 


of social-emotional learning, promotes their understanding of and respect for human rights, 


diversity, and acceptance in a multicultural society, and provides strategies to manage conflicts 


constructively. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


192/202







(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


As necessary, the district shall provide counseling, guidance, and support to students who are 


victims of hate-motivated behavior and to students who exhibit such behavior. 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the rules prohibiting hate-motivated behavior 


and procedures for reporting a hate-motivated incident are provided to students and 


parents/guardians. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff with training on recognizing and preventing 


hate-motivated behavior and on effectively enforcing rules for appropriate student conduct. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


Complaint Process 


 


A student or parent/guardian who believes the student is a victim of hate-motivated behavior is 


strongly encouraged to report the incident to a teacher, the principal, or other staff member. 


 


Any staff member who is notified that hate-motivated behavior has occurred, observes such 


behavior, or otherwise becomes aware of an incident shall immediately contact the principal or 


the compliance officer responsible for coordinating the district's response to complaints and 


complying with state and federal civil rights laws. As appropriate, he/she shall also contact law 


enforcement. 


 


(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement) 


 


Any complaint of hate-motivated behavior shall be investigated and, if determined to be 


discriminatory, shall be resolved in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint 


procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. If, during the investigation, 


it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory behavior, the principal or designee 


shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the complaint. 


 


(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


193/202







 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  School safety plans 


48900.3  Suspension for hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4670  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


110.25 Prohibition of discrimination based on age 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Bullying at School, 2003 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Prohibited Disability Harassment, July 2000 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Association of Human Relations Organizations:  http://www.cahro.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


  


194/202







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Hate-Motivated Behavior 
 


BP 5145.9  


Students 
 


 


In order to create a safe learning environment for all students, the Governing Board desires to 


protect the right of every student to be free from hate-motivated behavior and will promote 


harmonious relationships among students so as to enable them to gain a true understanding of the 


civil rights and social responsibilities of people in society.  The district prohibits discriminatory 


behavior or statements that degrade an individual on the basis of his/her actual or perceived race, 


ethnicity, culture, heritage, gender, sex, sexual orientation, physical/mental attributes, or 


religious beliefs or practices. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 


(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 


(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 


(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 


(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with regional programs and community 


organizations to promote safe environments for youth.  These efforts shall be focused on 


providing an efficient use of district and community resources. 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 


(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


The district shall provide age-appropriate instruction to help promote an understanding of and 


respect for human rights, diversity, and tolerance in a multicultural society and to provide 


strategies to manage conflicts constructively. 


 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


195/202







(cf. 6141.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


Grievance Procedures 


 


Any student who believes he/she is a victim of hate-motivated behavior shall notify any staff 


member who shall immediately contact the Principal.  Upon receiving such a complaint, the 


Principal shall immediately investigate the complaint in accordance with school-level complaint 


process/grievance procedures as described in AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment.  A student who 


has been found to have demonstrated hate-motivated behavior shall be subject to discipline in 


accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 


 


 (cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 


(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


(cf. 5131- Conduct) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


Staff who receive notice of hate-motivated behavior or personally observe such behavior shall 


notify the Coordinator/Principal, Superintendent or designee, and/or law enforcement, as 


appropriate. 


 


(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 


(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 


 


As necessary, the district shall provide counseling, guidance, and support to students who are 


victims of hate-motivated behavior and to students who exhibit such behavior. 


 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


32282  School safety plans 


48900.3  Suspension for hate violence 


48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


422.6  Crimes, harassment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4600-4687  Uniform Complaint Procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


 


196/202







Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION LEGAL ADVISORIES 


California Student Safety and Violence Prevention - Laws and Regulations, April 2004 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS & NATIONAL 


ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime: A Guide for Schools, 1999 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


Preventing Youth Hate Crimes: A Guide for Schools and Communities, 1997 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Association of Human Relations Organizations:  http://www.cahro.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


National Youth Violence Prevention Resource Center: http://www.safeyouth.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice, Community Relations Service: http://www.usdoj.gov/crs 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


197/202







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Animals At School 
 


BP 6163.2  


Instruction 
 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that animals can contribute to the district's instructional 


program by being effective teaching aids to students and by assisting individuals with disabilities 


to access district programs and activities.  In addition, instruction related to the care and 


treatment of animals teaches students a sense of responsibility and promotes the humane 


treatment of living creatures. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop rules and procedures to ensure that when animals 


are brought to school, the health, safety, and welfare of students, staff, and the animals are 


protected.  However, the district assumes no liability for the safety of animals allowed on 


district property. 


 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 


(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 


(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


233.5  Instruction in kindness to pets and humane treatment of living creatures 


39839  Transportation of guide dogs, signal dogs, service dogs 


51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 


51540  Safe and humane treatment of animals at school 


CIVIL CODE 


54.1  Access to public places 


54.2  Guide, signal, or service dogs, right to accompany 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


810-996.6  California Tort Claims Act, especially: 


815  Liability for injuries generally; immunity of public entity 


198/202







835  Conditions of liability 


VEHICLE CODE 


21113  Public grounds 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13 


1216  Transportation of property 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.104  Definitions 


35.136  Service animals 


COURT DECISIONS 


Sullivan v. Vallejo City USD, (1990) 731 F.Supp. 947 


 


Management Resources: 


FEDERAL REGISTER 


Rules and Regulations, September 15, 2010, Vol. 75, Number 178, pages 56164-56236 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Indoor Air Quality: Governing Board Actions for Creating Healthy School Environments, Policy 


Brief, July 2008 


Asthma Management in the Schools, Policy Brief, March 2008 


WEB SITES: 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


American Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals:  http://www.aspca.org 


Humane Society of the United States:  http://www.hsus.org 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


 


 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools, Santa Cruz CA 


Adopted:  


199/202







New Business: Resolution 13-18-19 in Support of the


Soquel Union Elementary District Parcel Tax Measure B


in the November 6, 2018 Election


Separator Page


200/202







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 13-18-19 in Support of the Soquel Union Elementary 


School District Parcel Tax Measure B on November 6, 2018  
 
MEETING DATE:  October 3, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Take action as appropriate.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Our neighboring feeder district, Soquel Union Elementary School District (SUESD), will bring to 
voters Parcel Tax Measure B on November 6, 2018.  Measure B will support the retention of 
current high-quality teachers and staff and the recruitment of new high-quality teachers and 
staff.  Measure B will support enhanced gardening and life lab opportunities and fund music 
programs at each SUESD elementary school and at New Brighton Middle School.  Measure B 
will help foster the development of well-educated and well-rounded students as they 
matriculate from SUESD to high school in Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


201/202







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION #13-18-19 


 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  


SUPPORTING THE SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT MEASURE B IN THE 


NOVEMBER 6, 2018 ELECTION 


 


WHEREAS, Soquel Union Elementary School District (SUESD), in partnership with parents and 


community, strives to provide a high-quality education to all students; and,  


 


WHEREAS, Measure B will: support the retention of current high-quality teachers and staff; and, 


 


WHEREAS, Measure B will: support the recruitment of new high-quality teachers and staff; and, 


 


WHEREAS, Measure B will: fund support for enhanced gardening and life lab opportunities; and, 


 


WHEREAS, Measure B will: fund music programs at each elementary school and at New Brighton 


Middle School; and, 


 


WHEREAS, Measure B will: help foster the development of well-educated and well-rounded 


students as they matriculate from SUESD to high school in Santa Cruz City Schools; and, 


 


WHEREAS, Measure B employs REQUIRED Taxpayer safeguards including Senior Exemptions; ALL 


funds STAY LOCAL for SCCHSD schools ONLY; the State CANNOT take this funding away; NO funds 


are allowed for administrators' salaries or pensions; Independent Citizens' Oversight 


and mandatory audits ensure funds are spent properly; and  


 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED THAT THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE SANTA CRUZ 


CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT SUPPORTS THE SOQUEL UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 


DISTRICT MEASURE B ON THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018 BALLOT. 


  


PASSED AND ADOPTED on October 3, 2018, by the following vote: 


 


AYES:  


 


NOES:  


 


ABSENT:  


 


ABSTAIN: 


 


 


 


            


Claudia Vestal      Kris Munro 


Board President     Board Clerk 


  


202/202





		Agenda 10-3-18 Final.REVISED

		Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing-#1 


		Minutes September 26, 2018 Reviewed 


		Personnel Actions - Certificated 


		Personnel Actions - Classified 


		Purchase Orders, Bids &amp; Quotes 


		8.1.3 Pos over $2500 list

		Warrant Register 


		8.1.4 Vendor warrants list

		Resolution 12-18-19_ Santa Cruz HS Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Scholarship

		8.1.5 Res. Bytheal Ratliff Humanitarian Memorial Scholarship

		Change Order #3_ CRW Industries – Concrete Repair for Natural Bridges Gym Modernization Phase I Project

		8.3.1. CRW NB Change Order #3 Gym Mod

		Change Order #2_ CRW Industries – Groundwater Intrusion &amp; Mitigation for Branciforte Small Schools Relocation of Playground and Lunch Shelter

		8.3.2. CRW Change Order #2 B40SS Shade &amp; Playground 

		Contract_ Enviroplex_ Natural Bridges Modernization

		8.3.3. Enviroplex Proposal NB RR Bldg

		Change Order #1_ Fresh Start Painting – Natural Bridges Gym Modernization &amp; Repairs

		8.3.4. Fresh Start Painting Change Order #1 NB Repainting

		Staff Report_ Food Services Update 


		8.5.2.1 Food Sv Update Cover Addendum 1 Comparison of like districts state-wide

		8.5.2.1 Food Sv Update cover addendum 2 Comparison of county districts

		8.5.2.1 Food Services Update presentation

		Staff Report_ Bond Budget Update 


		8.5.2.2 Bond Budget Update.Final.KM.110.3.18

		Staff Report_ Parcel Tax Update 


		8.5.2.3 Parcel Tax Update presentation

		New Business_ Business Services_ Contract_ SCCC_COE for new Financial System ESCAPE

		8.5.2.4 Escape District MOU with COE 10-2018

		New Business_ Board Policies Updates_ Final Reading

		8.5.4.1. May 2018 CSBA BP Updates Guidesheet BOARD

		BP 0410 Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities

		BP 0410 current

		BP 3514 Environmental Safety NEW

		BP 3514.1 Hazardous Substances

		BP 3514.1 current

		BP 3516 Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan

		BP 3516 current

		BP 4158 Employee Security

		BP 4158 current

		BP 5111 Admission

		BP 5111 current

		BP 5111.1 District Residency

		BP 5111.1 current

		BP 5125 Student Records

		BP 5125 current

		BP 5131.2 Bullying

		BP 5131.2 current

		BP 5145.3 Nondiscrimination.Harassment

		BP 5145.3 current

		BP 5145.9 Hate-Motivated Behavior

		BP 5145.9 current

		BP 6163.2 Animals at School NEW

		New Business_ Resolution 13-18-19 in Support of the Soquel Union Elementary District Parcel Tax Measure B in the November 6, 2018 Election

		8.5.4.2. Resolution 13-18-19 in Support of SUESD Parcel Tax Measure B in the November 6, 2018 Election




